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Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) was
formed through the restructuring of Harbin Electric Corporation
(formerly known as Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group
Corporation), which is the oldest large-scale power plant equipment
manufacturer in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
its three affiliates: Harbin Electrical Machinery Works, Harbin
Boiler Works and Harbin Turbine Works (“the three major power
factories”). These three major power factories were established in
the 1950s. The Company was established in Harbin, PRC on 6th
October, 1994. The dealings in the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “HKSE") commenced
on 16th December, 1994.

As at 31st December, 2009, the total share capital of the Company
comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 675,571,000 shares

were circulated on the HKSE as H shares.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are the largest
manufacturer of power plant equipment in the PRC. The Group's

principal activities include:

e Thermal power main equipments: boilers, steam turbines and
steam turbine generators with single unit capacity up to 1,000
MW, heavy-duty gas turbine and combined cycle units, the
largest manufacturing base for clean coal combustion equipment
in the PRC, CFB, PFBC, etc.

e Hydro power main equipments: hydro power generators unites

with single unit capacity up to 800 MW class

e Nuclear power main equipments: nuclear island and conventional

island equipments for nuclear power plants

e QOther products: ancillary equipment for power stations,
industrial boilers, industrial steam turbines, control devices, AC/
DC motors, valves for power stations, pressure vessels and axial

compressor, etc.

e Turn-key construction of power station projects
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e Contract supply of complete sets of thermal and hydro power

equipment

e |mport and export of equipment for power stations

e FEngineering technology R&D of complete set of power

equipment
e System R&D of complete set of power equipment
e R&D of power equipment and its ancillary equipment
e Technology transfer, technical consultation and services
e Environmental protection engineering services, etc.
The Group possesses a comprehensive range of advanced
production and research facilities. Its capabilities in research and
development, production and manufacturing and power station
construction are among the best in the power plant equipment

manufacturing industry in the PRC.

The Group is located in Harbin, PRC, which is known as the “City of
the Power”.
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Overview of the Company (continued)

ATIEERELEE CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND MAIN BUSINESS LINE
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Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE")

AN UN S
Holders of H Shares

50.93% 49.07%

BREEDORERBERAT(ERAF])
Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”)
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("Electrical Company”) Equipment
Machinery Co., Ltd

Company”)
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FRELAT R A
Profit before tax

REFRH
Net profit for the year

BERE

Total assets

BERE

Total liabilities

DB R AR

Minority interests

A B HE =
Shareholders’ equity

SHFEE
Net assets per share

SREF
Earnings per share

Unit

LSiiv)

ARETT
Rmb 000

ARETT
Rmb 000

ARBTT
Rmb 000

ARET T
Rmb’000

ARETT
Rmb 000

ARETT
Rmb 000

ARBTT
Rmb 000

AERH T
Rmb

AR#T
Rmb

The summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the

last five years are as follows:

2009

28,629,522

984,512

606,206

52,876,381

42,659,119

1,578,236

8,639,026

6.27

0.44

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

Year ended 31st December,

2008

29,903,544

1,573,247

1,041,837

48,966,625

39,398,700

1,431,845

8,136,080

8.9

0.757

2007

27,648,584

2,115,820

1,527,979

42,090,490

33,678,080

1,199,417

7,212,993

5.24

1.123

2006

29,098,016

1,543,573

1,024,581

37,444,548

31,665,150

947,931

4,831,467

3.79

0.804

2005

18,464,106

696,125

464,990

36,448,887

31,924,207

640,052

3,884,628

3.05

0.389



RAREZEBEAKREER AR WIRENESIE The Company acts as an investment holding company and provides

RIS EKI B A A] corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
EZ2009F128310 LFE B Z2008F 12 A31 HILFE

Year ended 31st December, 2009 Year ended 31st December, 2008
RIEEMDEEXEREXNBER BHEH =E D EER =E )
Turnover and contribution to operating Turnover Contribution to Turnover Contribution to
profit by major product categories operating operating
profit profit
ARBFT ARHEFTT ARBTFT ARETFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
NEBEHERE 19,220,791 2,572,874 20,493,133 3,042,982

Main thermal power equipment

IKEFHEE 1,893,429 437,991 2,863,250 658,649
Main hydro power equipment

BUh TIZARTS 4,299,673 (60,962) 3,446,168 (346,162)

Engineering services for power stations

BRI ERE 1,251,301 316,106 1,161,006 299,577
Ancillary equipment for power stations

R E i B N E A EE an ER AR 7S 1,964,328 399,498 1,939,987 352,034
AC/DC motors and other products

and services

28,629,522 3,665,507 29,903,544 4,007,080
A ZE R s 213,690 340,580
Profit from other activities
KO FZERZER 2,894,685 2,774,413
Expenses not allocated to major products
BB F 984,512 1,673,247

Profit before tax
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear shareholders,

| am pleased to present the Company's annual report for the year
ended 31st December, 2009 to all shareholders on behalf of the
board of directors of Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited and
wish to take this opportunity to express my sincerest appreciation
to the support of all shareholders.

In 2009, the world economy saw substantial changes and was
full of uncertainties, but Chinese economy maintained an overall
recovery with GDP exceeding its 8% target. During the second
half of 2009, both power generation and consumption recovered
across China and there were more power construction and
investment. While market demands for traditional thermal and
hydro power started to fall, new energy products such as nuclear
and wind power became the epicenter of market competition with
consistently strong demands across the globe. This has raised new
and higher requirements for power plant equipment manufacturers,

but at the same time offers more room for their development.

In view of the changes in the market environment in 2009, the
Company’'s management has timely adjusted the operating
strategies and focused on nuclear power products and the
expansion of its international markets. As a result, the Company
achieved satisfying results for the year, generating sales income
of Rmb28,629 million and net profit of Rmb606 million. Newly
signed contracts amounted to Rmb41,677 million, with contracts
of both nuclear power products and exported products hitting the
Company's records, valuing Rmb6,236 million and Rmb18,472

million, respectively.
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We have noticed that the Company’s operation scale and
profitability have been partly affected by various factors in 2009.
The Company is now in the correction phase. To accommodate
changes in market demands, the Company has increased its input
in science and technology. During the year, the Company invested
a total of Rmb784 million in R&D projects, which helped it achieve
dozens of patents and national and provincial awards for scientific

achievements.

In order to enhance its internal control system, the Company
has initiated an internal control review program throughout the
organization. In the next two to three years, the Company will
continue to improve this program to enhance its management

quality and anti-risk capability.

We are pleased that many projects have been completed or near
completion. The Company has achieved great development in its
nuclear power products as well as large-scale and high-efficient
thermal and hydro power units. The newly signed contract value
for nuclear power products has increased to nearly 15% of the
total contract value. The Company’s technology in large-scale
hydro power projects is still at international level and it is about
to launch the domestically made large-scale super critical thermal
power units. In addition, the Company has set up a manufacturing
and services company IRAEERBEEZE AT for the purpose of
repairing and upgrading power plants. Other new products with high
potentials are also undergoing different R&D stages. In 2010, all
of the Qinhuangdao base's nuclear power products with upgraded

technologies will be put into use.

In 2010, the Company will encounter much serious challenges.
Firstly, higher market demands for high-efficient, environmental
and new energy-related products require the Company to further
enhance its technologies and innovation capacity. Secondly, the
emergence of more new products, nuclear power products in
particular, requires the Company to better improve its production
structure and control costs. Thirdly, changes in the economic
environment and uncertainties surrounding the global market require
the Company to further strengthen its management and anti-risk
capabilities. Although believing in a bright future, we recognize the

obstacles ahead and the responsibilities on our shoulders.
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| deeply understand the strong expectations from all of our staff and
shareholders. It is the Company and my belief to make meticulous
planning, innovate and put into practice the most possible ideas. In
order to award our shareholders with excellent corporate results,
we will fight hard to become the best in China and one of the

leading power equipment enterprises in the world.

Chairman
Gong Jing-kun
Harbin, the PRC, 9th April, 2010
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This section must be read in conjunction with the financial
statements and notes to the financial statements as set out in other

sections of this annual report.

2009 was a most difficult year for economic growth of China since
new century starts. Under its accurate judgment, firm decision
and deliberate response, the Chinese government launched
and continued to improve series of stimulus plans against the
international financial crisis amid the worldwide recession. All
these efforts have effectively controlled the significant decline of
economic growth. As a result, the national economy demonstrated
a general rebound and achieved the target of GDP growth of over
8%, laying down a solid foundation for the further development in
2010.

Entering the second half of 2009, national electricity output and
consumption growth accelerated and investments in power
construction increased. With the improvement and implementation
of environmental protection policy and regulation in China, the
construction of power plants was more focused on structural
optimization. The robust demand for traditional power generation
equipment with features of environmental friendly, energy-saving
and efficient and new energy products such as nuclear power and
wind power provides significant potential for power generation

equipment manufacturer.

Given the great pressures in domestic and international power
generation equipment market in 2009, the Company placed all
its efforts to develop domestic and international market, and the
value of new-receiving contracts recorded a sound performance
at Rmb41.677 billion, among which the contract value for thermal
power equipment, hydro power equipment, engineering services,
nuclear power equipment and others reached Rmb20.541 billion,
Rmb1.7 billion, Rmb10.302 billion, Rmb6.236 billion and Rmb2.898
billion respectively, representing 49.29%, 4.08%, 24.72%, 14.96%

and 6.95% of the total contracted value respectively.
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An exceptional result was achieved for the development of the
nuclear power products market with market shares continued to
increase, highlighting by the new contracts of T&G for AP1000
nuclear power project in Xianning, Hubei and two 650MW nuclear
power turbine units under Hainan Changjiang project. The market
share of AP1000 conventional island turbine unit has reached
50% in terms of new contracts, enabling the Company to take
the lead in the market. In respect of main equipment for nuclear
island, the Company has secured the supply contracts for 4 steam
power generators under Taohuajiang project, 2 steam power
generators under Hubei Xianning project and 4 steam power
generators under C3/C4 project in Chashma, representing 40%
market share for AP1000 nuclear power steam power generator.
The Company has acquired a series of contracts for nuclear power
equipments, including the pressure stabilizers under Taohuajiang
and Yangjiang projects, the main pump generators under C3/C4
project in Chashma as well as the core makeup tanks and passive
residual heat removal heat exchanger under Sanmen project. All of
these contracts not only significantly increased the market share
of nuclear power products, but also expanded the supply scope of
our nuclear power products, thus created the condition for the fast

growth of the Company’s nuclear business.

The Company has maintained its competitive edges in the thermal
power market. In particular, the Company has entered traditional
thermal power products contracts for two 600MW supercritical
thermal power units under Luneng Heilongjiang Baoging project,
two 660MW supercritical steam turbines (Aircooling) under Shenhua
Inner Mongolia Dianta project and generators. The Company has
successfully won over 30% of the tenders for 300MW thermal
power unit and 600MW steam turbines and generators. Facing
the intense competition due to fewer tendering in large-scale
hydropower market in 2009, the Company strived to win the
contract for 3X44MW francis turbine unit under Guangdong
Lechangxia project, and win the tenders for 2X90MW francis
turbine unit under Sinkiang Liushugou project and 2 X20MW flow-
type turbine unit under Chongging Yangtoupu project, and these
reinforced the Company's leading position in traditional thermal

power and hydropower market.
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The value of new-receiving contracts scaled a new height at
Rmb18.472 billion amid the tough situation in international market
in 2009. The Company, on one hand, increased its efforts in
main equipment export and has entered the supply contracts for
6x660MW two-cylinder supercritical steam turbine, generator
and two 9F combined cycle ancillary 1356MW steam turbine,
generator with LANCO (India), and the supply contract of Indian
SPCL Amarvati 2x660MW supercritical turbine unit jointly with
SEPCOIIl Electric Power Construction Corporation, which marked
our first entry in the Indian market with the 600MW supercritical
steam turbine, generator. On the other hand, the Company also
placed greater efforts in its development towards EPC project, and
has acquired the contracts for power transmission and conversion

project in Dongola, Sudan.

The total output for 2009 was up to 26,106.3MW, representing a
decrease of 25.62% compared with the last year, among which 49
units of utility boiler with a total capacity of 22,185MW, a decrease
of 13.49% over the last year; 56 steam turbines for power plant
with a total capacity of 20,832MW, a decrease of 30.82% over
the last year; 55 turbine generator units with a total capacity of
20,793MW, a decrease of 29.20% over the last year; 29 units
of hydro power turbo-generator units with a total capacity of
5,313.3MW, a decrease of 7.33% over the last year; and 1 units
of gas turbines with a total capacity of 255.6MW, a decrease of

66.67% over the last year, were completed.

While the project implementation in this year demonstrating
characteristics like heavy workload, higher percentage of large
capacity and new units, tight and centralized delivery schedule
and high risk, the Company has overcame various difficulties and

implemented the projects smoothly.
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The Company adopted effective measures against current situation,
during which the Company reinforced the dynamic management on
projects, enhanced risk analysis, approved the payments according
to projects and adjusted production schedule in a timely manner.
The Company successfully completed the full-year production
task by consolidating internal production resources effectively,
setting schedule for each production phase accurately, boosting
critical technologic breakthrough actively and enhancing production
technological services continuously. All projects progressed
smoothly, with the No.3 660MW ultra supercritical unit under
Xuchang Yulong project commenced commercial operation,
marking the shortest record in the same type units from completely
launching to finishing trial operation of 168 hours. As the national-
first lignite boiler supercritical unit (#1534 = #8558 i A% 4) project,
the NO.1 660MW unit under phase one construction of Huaneng
Jiutai Power Plant is difficult to implement and the task is heavy.
With our continue efforts, all the indicators of the project have
met the designed standards and the unit operated smoothly. The
desulphurization project in Xuancheng was honored “National Best
Project” and “National High Quality Electric Power Project”.

RMB784 million in total was invested over the year in new research
studies projects.

The capacity in self-innovation was improved. In 2009, totally 591
R&D projects were launched with 42 projects declared to the
nation, the province and the municipality. Development of 154
new products was completed, including the World-first 350MW
supercritical lignite boiler with independent intellectual property.
The Company obtained patents in 45 products and acquired 13
national, provincial and municipal awards for scientific achievements
as well as 10 other awards, among which the Special Prize of
National Technological Improvement in Engineering Industry was
granted for the "“Production and Industrialization of 1000MW
Ultra Supercritical Major Thermal Power Equipment” and the First
Prize of National Science and Technology in Engineering Industry
was awarded for the “Application of Bowed-Twisted Blade and
Flow Field Performance Optimization in Large Steam Turbine”.
In addition, the Company also acquired important awards such as
the First Prize of Heilongjiang Provincial Scientific Development,
Award for Heilongjiang Provincial Science and Technology in
Engineering Industry and First Prize of Haerbin Municipal Scientific
Development.
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Technology introduction and absorption was progressing steadily.
The Company accelerated the introduction of AP1000 nuclear
technology of Mitsubishi Corporation and completed the technical
preparations of Sanmen project. The Pump-storage unit technology
introduced from ALSTOM has entered the stage of re-innovation
through Xiangshuijian project. A domestic proportion of 100%
was achieved for 600MW super/ultra supercritical units, 100% for
1000MW ultra super critical boiler units, 85% for steam turbines

and 92% for generators.

Energy conservation and emission reduction was in progress. The
Company vigorously developed and utilized energy-saving, efficient
and environment-friendly products, and tightened our control on the
energy consumption indicator in such areas as product design and
manufacturing organization. In 2009, the Company consumed less

energy than in the past few years.

The Company strives to improve the internal control system. In
order to enhance the sense of risk management, the Company has
appointed PricewaterhouseCoopers as its advisor and, together
with its subsidiaries, carried out an internal control review program.
This has effectively strengthened our management and risk control

capabilities.

The Company continues to enhance cost management. Under
the “lower cost and higher efficiency” principle, the Company
continues to enhance the sense of cost and increases its efforts in
cost management in areas including technology, manufacturing and

transportation.

The Company continues to improve procurement management. In
order to reduce procurement cost, the Company has established
an internal bidding center. The Company has also set up a
uniform bidding mechanism throughout the organization to further

standardize the bidding and procurement process.
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In the year of 2009, net profit of the Group was Rmb606.21 million,
a decrease of 41.81% compared to the last year; earnings per
share was Rmb0.44, a decrease of Rmb0.32 compared to the
corresponding period of last year; net asset as at the end of the
period was Rmb8,639.03 million, an increase of Rmb502.95 million
compared to the beginning of the year; net asset per share was
Rmb6.27, an increase of Rmb0.36 compared to the beginning of the
year.

During the period, the decline in the profit of the Group was mainly
attributable to the decrease in product revenue and gross profit, the
recognition of provisions for the loss of nuclear power project as
well as the increase in allowance.

A dividend of Rmb0.068 per share (appropriate tax included) for
the year of 2009 (2008: Rmb0.075 per share) was proposed by the
board of directors.

In 2009, the Group recorded a turnover of principal business
activities of Rmb28,629.52 million, a decrease of 4.26% compared
to the last year. In particular, turnover of the thermal power main
equipment business was Rmb19,220.79 million, representing a
decrease of 6.21% over the last year and accounted for 67.14%
of the turnover of the principal business activities. Turnover of
hydropower main equipment was Rmb1,893.43 million, a decrease
of 33.87% over the last year, representing 6.61% of the turnover
of the principal business activities. Turnover of power plant
engineering services was Rmb 4,299.67 million, an increase of
24.77% compared to the last year, representing 15.02% of the
turnover of the principal business activities. Turnover of power
plant accessories and parts was Rmb1,251.3 million, an increase of
7.78% over the last year, representing 4.37% of the turnover of the
principal business activities. Turnover of AC/DC motors and other
products and services was Rmb1,964.33 million, an increase of
1.25% over the last year, representing 6.86% of the turnover of the
principal business activities.

During the period, the Group recorded a turnover of export of
Rmb4,325.66 million, representing an increase of Rmb1,510.68
million over the last year and accounted for 15.11% of the turnover
of the principal business activities. The export was mainly to areas
such as Asia and Africa.
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During the year, the cost of the principal business activities of
the Group was Rmb24,964.02 million, a decrease of 3.60% as
compared to the last year. The decrease was mainly attributable to

the decrease of turnover of main business activities in 2009.

During the period, the gross profit from the principal business
activities of the Group was Rmb3,665.51 million, a decrease of
8.562% as compared to the last year. The gross profit margin was
12.80%, a decrease of 0.6 percentage points over the last year. The
decrease in the gross profit margin was mainly attributable to an
increase in the cost of products, which was due to the fact that the
raw materials consumed to produce our products sold during the
period were purchased in the fourth quarter of 2007 and the first

half of 2008 when the prices were at their historic heights.

Among them the gross profit from thermal power main equipment
was Rmb2,572.87 million, a decrease of Rmb470.11 million
compared to the last year. The gross profit margin for thermal
power main equipment was 13.39%, a decrease of 1.46 percentage
points compared to the corresponding period last year. The gross
profit from hydropower main equipment was Rmb437.99 million,
a decrease of Rmb220.66 million compared to the corresponding
period last year. The gross profit margin for hydropower main
equipment was 23.13%, an increase of 0.13 percentage points
compared to the corresponding period last year. The gross profit
from power plant engineering services was Rmb-60.96 million,
an increase of Rmb285.2 million compared to the corresponding
period last year. The gross profit margin for power plant engineering
services was -1.42%, an increase of 8.62 percentage points over
the corresponding period last year. The gross profit from power
plant accessories and parts was Rmb316.11 million, an increase of
Rmb16.53 million compared to the corresponding period last year.
The gross profit margin for power plant accessories and parts was
25.26%, a decrease of 0.54 percentage points over the last year.
The gross profit from the AC/DC motors and other products and
services was Rmb399.5million, an increase of Rmb47.47 million
compared to the corresponding period last year. The gross profit
margin for the AC/DC motors and other products and services was
20.34%, an increase of 2.19 percentage points over the last year.
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The Group’s expenses for operation activities during the year of
2009 amounted to Rmb388.59 million, a decrease of Rmb36.69
million compared to the corresponding period last year, of which
the main reason was the decrease in selling and transportation

expenses of our products.

Expenses for administration activities during the year of 2009
amounted to Rmb2,325.71 million, an increase of Rmb171.91 million
or 7.98% compared to the corresponding period last year, of which

the main reason was the increase in asset impairment provisions.

In 2009, the Group has incurred financial expenses of Rmb180.38
million, a decrease of Rmb14.94 million compared to the
corresponding period last year, which was mainly attributable to the

decrease in loan interests.

The Group has three major resources for operation and development
funding, namely shareholder’'s capital, trade receivable from
customers and bank borrowings. The Group arranges borrowings
for each specific project. Except for some special situations, loans
will be raised individually by the Group’s subsidiaries. However, the
advance approval from the parent company for capital investment
borrowings is required. As the number of orders and the trade
amount received in advance of the Group increased significantly
during the past two years, the Group had abundant working capital
and has thus repaid substantially all of the loans for working
capital. As at 31st December 2009, the total sum of the Group's
bank borrowings was Rmb3,995.68 million (31st December 2008:
Rmb4,405.82 million). The Group’s bank borrowings were loans
from various commercial banks and the State's policy banks
with interest rates stipulated by the state. Among the Group's
borrowings, the amount due within one year was Rmb1,288.58
million, an increase of Rmb417.88 million compared to the
beginning of the year. The amount of the Group's borrowings due
after one year was Rmb2,707.1 million, a decrease of Rmb828.02

million compared to the beginning of the year.
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As at 31st December, 2009, bank deposits and cash of the Group
amounted to Rmb14,165.73 million, an increase of Rmb3,864.13
million over the beginning of the year. During the period, net
cash inflow from operating activities amounted to Rmb4,530.2
million. Net cash outflow from investment activities amounted to
Rmb1,058.48 million and net cash outflow from financing activities
was Rmb80.75million.

As at 31st December, 2009, total assets of the Group amounted
to Rmb52,876.38 million, an increase of Rmb3,909.76 million (or
7.98%) compared to the beginning of the year, among which total
current assets were Rmb47,585.42 million, representing 89.99%
of the total assets, and total non-current assets were Rmb5,290.96
million, representing 10.01% of the total assets.

As of 31st December, 2009, the Group’s total liabilities amounted
to Rmb42,659.12 million, an increase of Rmb3,260.42 million
compared to the beginning of the year, among which total current
liabilities were Rmb31,019.63 million, representing 72.72% of the
total liabilities, and total non-current liabilities were Rmb11,639.49
million, representing 27.28% of the total liabilities. As at 31st
December, 2009, the assets to liabilities ratio of the Group was
80.68%.

As of 31st December, 2009, the total shareholders’ equity of the
Group amounted to Rmb8,639.03 million, an increase of Rmb502.95
million compared to the beginning of the year; the net asset per
share was Rmb6.27. During the period, the net asset return rate of
the Group was 7.23%.

As of 31st December, 2009, gearing ratio of the Group (non-current
liabilities over total shareholders’ equity) was 1.35:1 as compared to
that of 1.09:1 at the beginning of the year.
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As of 31st December, 2009, the Group pledged its assets in an
amount of Rmb526.23 million to secure loans for liquidity.

In the year 2009, the Group has invested a total capital expenditure
of Rmb788 million in infrastructure constructions and technological

upgrades.

Nuclear power projects are undergoing steady development.
The main equipments of the improvement project for domestic
production at conventional islands have been put into use. The
manufacturing and construction project of the main equipments for
nuclear island has largely completed its civil engineering works, and
the main equipments are putting into use one after another. The
multi-factories expanded under the manufacturing self-reliance and
improvement project of the main equipments for nuclear island are
cold-sealed. The civil engineering works of the construction project
of manufacturing base for main pump generators have entered the
last stage, and certain equipments have been delivered for use.
The multi-factories expanded under the manufacturing technology
upgrade project for nuclear power reactor-cooling agent pump
units are sealed. The technological upgrade project for 1000MW
nuclear power auxiliary equipment has completed all works on its
new factories. The equipments of all projects are being procured

smoothly.

Meanwhile, the civil engineering works of the technological upgrade
and construction project for power plant valve have entered the last
stage. The technological upgrade project of the newly built hydro
power model laboratory has completed the excavation of the factory
foundation. The first stage of the technological upgrade project of
large-scale coal engineering has completed all works at the factory

foundation and part of the underground pipeline network.
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The Group has certain amount of deposits that are denominated in
foreign currencies. As at 31st December, 2009, the amount of the
Group's deposits in foreign currencies amounted to RMB700.15
million. Export and foreign currencies settled businesses expose the

Group to exchange risk.

In the year 2009, the Group has utilized a total of Rmb102 million
of its fund-raising proceeds mainly for the Workshop Base
Construction Project in relation to main equipment for nuclear
islands, technological upgrade of nuclear power plant valves and

nuclear power main pump generators.

As of 31st December, 2009, the Group has utilized a total of
Rmb2,485 million of its H share listing proceeds, while the
remaining balance of the listing proceeds of Rmb145 million was
deposited with banks and will be used in the second stage of
the Workshop Base Construction Project and other technological

upgrade projects.

As at 31st December, 2009, the Group had a workforce of 18,895
employees and the total remuneration amounted to Rmb1,186
million. In order to enhance knowledge, skills and capabilities as
well as promote the overall caliber of its staff, the Company has
put additional efforts in staff training and adopted various training
approaches emphasizing on-the-job training and targeting at
senior management personnel while a number of training courses
for academic qualifications were also provided. As a result, the
Company’s staffs have become more competent which helps build

a solid foundation for a steady development of the Company.
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Looking into 2010, there are still many uncertainties in the world
economy development, which is heading for a grim situation. As
the basic situation and long-term uptrend of China’'s economy
development did not change significantly, China’s GDP is expected
to grow 8.7% in 2010. As the rapid development in macro-economy
will maintain a high level of market demand for power generating
equipments, it is expected that the total power generating capacity
in 2010 will increase to about 950 million KW. The national policy
of the industry will encourage the transition towards energy-saving,
environmental and new energy. Therefore, nuclear, wind and solar
powers will see a large expansion in market demand.

The Company is facing unique challenges and opportunities in an
external environment where economy conditions change rapidly
and power generating equipment is frequently renewed. Under
the leadership of the Board, we are determined to push forward
to innovate and strive for a new era of stable and rapid growth, in
order to achieve outstanding returns for our shareholders.

The Company will focus on accomplishing the following tasks in
2010:

1. Collaborate both internally and externally to achieve
breakthroughs in marketing.

Based on careful analysis of domestic and international market
conditions, the Company mapped out its marketing plans and
strategies for 2010. The goals of marketing include: consolidate
the leading position of huge hydropower and AP1000 nuclear
power, and expand the market share and distribution area
of nuclear power products; participate more in international
market and enhance the contract construction and complete
set business of the engineering company, to achieve new
breakthroughs in Russia and US market; maintain our position
in the traditional market by securing over one third of the
market share for our high capacity generators of 300MW and
above; strive for breakthroughs in development of the large-
scale thermal power generator market; expand the markets for
supplementary machinery, deNox products, valves, gas boilers,
parts and obsolete generator renovation; and expand our market
share of new hi-tech power supply products.

We will also take the initiative in developing new markets,
such as IGCC and desalination and keep a close eye on market
development of gas turbines and environmental friendly products.
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2. Actively promote customer satisfaction through scientific

organization and reasonable arrangement.

The Company will face many tough challenges in 2010,
including the launch of operation of nuclear power products,
and imbalance in production tasks as a result of numerous new
products and concentrated deliveries. Moreover, the limited
amounts and volatile prices for key materials also sets barrier for
production arrangements. Therefore, we will pay more attention
to reasonable production arrangements, to prepare schedules
that fulfill the requirement of our contracts while keeping a
reasonable balance. We will coordinate all subsidiaries involved
in the production process to provide full support to nuclear
power business, in order to fully tap the production capacity of

nuclear and conventional island bases.

With focus on our management of key projects, we will
strengthen our organizational coordination. Quick-responsive
and more effective precaution system will be established
to strengthen the risk prevention in project implementation,
and emphasize on timeliness of payment during project
implementation to ensure financial security. We will work our
best to secure the implementation of nuclear power project
with active acquisition of raw materials, establishment of a
sound project management system and improved management
standards. As for gas turbines, we will pay more attention to on-

site management and services.

Internal research and external imports with an creative

approach to raise our own innovation ability.

The Company plans to spend RMB800 million on scientific
research in 2010. Directed by the National Power Equipment
Engineering Research Centre, we will integrate our internal
research and development resources and enhance the overall
technical innovation capacity through various methods, such as

importing technologies, self-development and joint development.
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The focuses of product development in 2010 are as follows:
make every effort to ensure the development of nuclear
power products; strengthen the development of large-scale
hydropower and pumped storage units; accelerate the upgrade
and replacement of coal power equipments; speed up the
development for new energy products such as marine power;
explore into the industries of coal chemical, large chemical
container and IGCC products; develop environmentally friendly
products and desalination equipments; maintain and consolidate
the rapid development in electric driving force; develop power
plant maintenance service and backup and spare parts business
with modern manufacture service concepts; work on wind

power equipments research and development.

With focus on the imported AP1000 nuclear technology, we will
speed up our process for assimilating the imported technologies.
The research and development of the AP1000 nuclear power
steam equipment will start technology conversion and product
manufacture work as planned. The domestication of design and
manufacture technology of large scale half-speed gas turbines
will also be accelerated. With the assimilation and renovation
of the technologies in Sanmen and Haiyang projects, we will be
able to develop AP1000 or nuclear power generators with higher

capacity on our own.

We will strive to work on the research and development of
products such as 600MW super critical W thermal boiler. The
topic of Key Technology of AP1000 Nuclear Power Turbine
( CAP1000Z & )Tin & B R AT ) 2R78) will be based at the
Xianning Project in Hubei, and include self-reliance tasks such as
the system design of main steam system and bypass system,
layout design and strength calculation. We will also endeavor
to accomplish the self-reliance design of ultra super critical
generator units. The development focus of combined cycle units
will be on 309E and 209FA straight condensing units.

We will continue to increase the proportion of energy-saving,
environmental and efficient power equipments, actively apply
for energy-saving and environmental projects and research on
environmental products such as dust removal, deSO2, deNOx

and power plant water treatment.
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4.

Improve internal control, strengthen our solid foundation

and enhance our management.

The Company will continue to carry out the internal control
program by fully implementing the internal control manual and
forming an initial mechanism for continuously improving internal
control. These will further enhance the Company’s management

and risk control capabilities.

The Company will continue to enhance cost management,
increase its sense of costs and enhance its budget control on
costs. The Company will also strengthen its quality management

emphasizing quality costs.

The Company will vigorously implement information-based
application. There will be an organic combination between
our information-based work and the optimization of the
internal procedure. Moreover, the Company will improve its

management philosophy to enhance its management by reform.

Bring out actual effect, make a steady progress and
complete the technological upgrade plans in a high-quality

and efficient manner.

In 2010, the Company plans to invest a total of Rmb1,284 million
in 15 items of property, plant and equipment. The objectives are

as follows:

The improvement project of nuclear island in Qinhuangdao will
complete its civil engineering on factory and auxiliary works,
begin constructing the body of the laboratory building and deliver
the main equipments for use, of which the total investment is
expected to be Rmb228 million. In the Qinhuangdao base for
the improvement project of nuclear power conventional island,
the large-scale power generators laboratory and 110KV step-
down substation will deliver the main equipments for use, of
which the total investment is expected to be Rmb126 million.
The manufacturing project of the main equipments of nuclear
island will be fully put into operation with the total investment
expecting to be Rmb60 million. The manufacturing base project
of nuclear power main pump generators will complete its

factory construction and auxiliary works and deliver the main
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equipments for use, of which the total investment is expected
to be Rmb162 million. Other works in progress including the
million-level turbine generator nuclear auxiliary equipment will be
speeded up with the total investment expecting to be Rmb577

million.

In the construction projects of both flexible testing and
research and protection for the key program of steam turbines,
the Company expects to invest Rmb33 million and Rmb12
million respectively in equipments procurement. In addition,
the Company will invest Rmb86 million in other new projects

including the relocation and upgrade of the valve laboratory.

The Company will make sure these investments produce
expected results by rigorously managing the schedule and

quality of all projects.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Gong Jing-kun, born in July 1958, senior engineer with a
master’s degree, now chairman of HE and chairman of the Company.
Mr. Gong graduated from Shenyang Institute of Machinery and
Electronics in 1982. Later on, he studied in Shanghai Fudan University,
majoring in economic management and was conferred a master
degree. Mr. Gong joined HE in 1982. He has been vice director of
production division, vice manager of production department, manager
of hydropower workshop in former Harbin Electric Machinery Works
of the Group, and general manager assistant and deputy general
manager of the Electric Machinery Company of the Group. Mr.
Gong was appointed as chairman of Archeng Relay Group Company
and Archeng Relay Company Limited in 1999. In August 2000, he
was appointed as vice chairman and general manager of HE and in
September 2000, Mr. Gong was appointed as vice chairman of the
Company. In May 2006, he was appointed as chairman of HE and on
29th September, chairman of the Company.

Mr. Zou Lei, born in June 1966, senior economist with a doctor’s
degree, now director and general manager of HE and executive
director of the Company. Mr. Zou graduated from Jiamusi Technical
College in July 1988, majoring in mechanical design and manufacture,
and was conferred a bachelor degree. Then he obtained a doctor
degree from Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Zou joined HE in
August 1988 and was the dispatcher, Party office secretary, league
deputy secretary, secretary in dispatching room of production division
in former Harbin Boiler Works, Party branch secretary of pipe first
branch factory, factory director of heavy vessel workshop, factory
director of Pingshan branch factory, production director, deputy
general manager, Chairman of the Board, General manager and Party
committee deputy secretary in Harbin Boiler Company Limited. In
December 2008, Mr. Zou was elected as standing committee member
of the Party Committee, director and general manager. He has been
executive director of the Company from 11th February 2009.

Mr. Duan Hong-yi, born in February 1963, is a senior economist and
a master of business administration. He now serves as an executive
director of the Company and deputy general manager of HE. Majoring
in mechanics, Mr. Duan graduated from Harbin Electrical Machinery
College in 1982 and joined HE in the same year. Mr. Duan has been a
comprehensive planner and vice manager of the planning department
of former Boiler Works of the Group. In 1994, he participated in the
reorganization of HE to be a shareholding enterprise and the issuance
and listing of the Company’s shares. Since 1995, He has been a vice
director and the director of the planning and accounting department
and a vice chief accountant of the Company, a supervisor and a
deputy general manager of the Turbine Company of the Group, and a
vice chairman of Harbin Power Technology & Trade Incorporation of
the Group. He was appointed as a deputy general manager of HE in
August 2000 and an executive director of the Company in September
2000.
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Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, born in July 1962, is a researcher & senior
engineer with a doctor’'s degree. He now serves as an executive
director and the general manager of the Company. Majoring in
Hydraulics and River Dynamics, Mr. Wu graduated from Qinghua
University with a master’s degree in 1988 and joined HE in the same
year. Mr. Wu has been a deputy director and deputy head of the
turbine department of Electrical Machinery Institute, a deputy manager
of hydropower workshop, a vice chief engineer and a vice manager
of the product design department of the Electric Machinery Company
of the Group. Mr. Wu was appointed as the deputy general manager
and the chairman and general manager of the Electric Machinery
Company of the Group in 1999 and in October 2000, respectively. He
was appointed as an executive director of the Company in September
2000. Mr. Wu obtained a doctor’'s degree at Qinghua University
in 2002. He also holds lots of social posts, including the director
general of the large electrical equipment branch of China Electrical
Equipment Industrial Association, a directorate member of the water
turbine special committee of China Power Project (FREI®) 1 TF2),
a directorate member and director general of China Water Turbine
Standardized Technology Committee (FF BI7KERHEIZHE(L TR B €) as
well as a special-term professor of Harbin Institute of Technology and
Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Mr. Wu has been

serving as the general manager of the Company since February 2010.

Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, born in March 1961, is a research & senior
engineer and a master of business administration. He now serves as
an executive director and deputy general manager of the Company.
Majoring in steam turbine, Mr. Shang graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology in 1982 and joined HE in the same year. He has been
an assistant section head and deputy head of the Design Research
Institute, vice chief economist and vice chief engineer of former
Turbine Works of the Group. He was appointed as a deputy general
manager and the chairman and general manager of the Turbine
Company of the Group in October 1998 and November 1999,
respectively. In September 2000, he was appointed as an executive
director of the Company and in February 2002, as a deputy general

manager of the Company.
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Independent Directors

Mr. Sun Chang-ji, born in August 1942, researcher & senior engineer,
is an independent director of the Company and special advisor
for China Machinery Industry Federation, and deputy head of the
Preparatory Team for State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation.
Mr. Sun graduated from Tsinghua University in September 1966, and
started his career in 1968. He worked in Sichuan Oriental Turbine
Factory, serving as Section Head, Workshop Director, Deputy Factory
Manager and Factory Manager. In January 1991, he was appointed as
Deputy Director-general of the production department of the Ministry
of Machinery Industry of the PRC, and later he became Vice Minister
of the Ministry of Machinery Industry of the PRC in April 1993. In
April 1998, he became First Deputy Director-general of the State
Administration of Machinery Industry of the PRC (deputy ministerial
level). He became Deputy Party Secretary and Vice President
(deputy ministerial level) of Bank of China in January 1999, and
served concurrently as President of China Orient Asset Management
Corporation for the period from September 1999 to August 2001.
He became Vice Chairman of Bank of China in November 2000, Vice
Chairman of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited in September 2001
and Secretary of Commission for Discipline Inspection of Bank of
China in June 2003 concurrently. From August 2004, he has been
appointed as Vice Chairman of Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited and
Vice Chairman of China Machinery Industry Federation concurrently.
He was elected as a member of the 10th CPPCC National Committee
in January 2003, and deputy head of the Preparatory Team for State
Nuclear Power Technology Corporation in October 2004 concurrently.
Since December 2009, he has been an independent director of the
Company.

Mr. Jia Cheng-bing, born in July 1942, senior engineer with a
bachelor's degree, is an independent director of the Company, special
advisor for China Machinery Industry Federation, and president of
China Foundry Association. He graduated from Hefei University of
Technology in Foundry in 1965, and started his career in July of
the same year. He served as chief and deputy chief at Ministry of
Machinery Electronics Industry and Ministry of Machine Building
Industry, director of Personnel and Labor Division, head of office and
Party Commissioner at Ministry of Machine Building Industry. From
March 2001, he served as chairman of the Supervisory Committee
for various large State Council organizations (China National Materials
Industry Group, China State Shipbuilding Corporation, The State
Development and Investment Corp.). In February 2006, he was
appointed as deputy managing directors and special advisor of China
Machinery Industry Federation and president of China Foundry
Association. He has been an independent director of the Company
since September 2006.
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Ms. Li He-jun, born in June 1944, senior economist with a
bachelor’s degree, is an independent director of the Company, vice
chairperson of the Board of Southwest Aluminum (Group) Co. Ltd,
executive director of China Association of Women Entrepreneurs
and committee member of the Financial Advisory Committee.
Ms. Li graduated from Central Institute of Finance and Economics
(currently known as Central University of Finance and Economics)
in Finance and Accounting in 1966, and started her career in August
of the same year. She has served as chief and deputy chief of the
Planning Commission of Henan Province, Vice President and Deputy
Party Secretary of China Construction Bank Henan Branch. In 1993,
she became President and Party Secretary of China Construction
Bank Henan Branch and director of Henan Provincial Investment
Association. In 1999, she became chief commissioner of both the
Execute Commission and the Audit Commission for China Cinda Asset
Management Corporation. Since 2004, she has been appointed as
commissioner of the Expert Advisory Commission of China Cinda Asset
Management Corporation, vice chairperson of the Board of Southwest
Aluminum (Group) Co. Ltd, vice chairperson of the Board of Shanxi
Hancheng Coal Company, executive director of China Association
of Women Entrepreneurs and commissioner of Finance Inquiry
Commission. She has been an independent director of the Company
since September 2006.

Mr. Yu Bo, born in October 1960, is a professor with a doctor degree,
tutor for doctoral candidates, independent director of the Company,
dean of School of Management Harbin Institute of Technology
(SMHIT). Mr. Yu graduated from industrial electric automation, Harbin
Institute of Technology in 1981, and began his career from 1982. He
was a teacher, lecturer, associate professor, professor of School of
Management Harbin Institute of Technology; he became director of
Management Department of SMHIT in 2000, director of MBA School
of SMHIT in 2002, and dean assistant of SMHIT, director of MBA
School in 2003, dean of SMHIT since 2008. Mr. Yu is also a deputy
director of Energy System Engineering Committee of China Energy
Research Society, a member of National MBA Education Committee,
a member of Military Technology Administration of China Ordnance
Society, a councilman of Chinese Society of Technology Economics,
a member of Space Technology Committee of Beijing Society
of Astronautics, a councilman of Aerospace Research Society, a
councilman of Heilongjiang Provincial Budgetary Council, an industrial
expert of Heilongjiang Science and Technology Consultation. He was
appointed as independent director of the Company since December
2009.
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Mr. Liu Deng-qing, born in November 1970, doctor for management
of Tsinghua University, independent director of the Company, a CPV,
CREA, and CMRA (Certified Mining Rights Appraiser) of China. He is
one of first the Top Ten Youth Appraisers; a partner, vice president
and chief appraiser of China Enterprise Appraisal Company. He is
a member of the Tenth China Youth Federation; a councilman of
China Appraisal society; fellow member of China Appraisal society;
a member of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council, (“SASAC"), and Project Appraisal
Expert Group of the Ministry of Finance; a member of the tenth
and eleventh Issuance Verification Committee of the China
Securities Regulatory Commission; a member of Appraisal Standard
Committee of China Appraisal society; a member of Enterprise
Valuation Committee, and Intangible Asset Appraisal Committee, and
Continuation Education Committee of CPV; a member of Appraisal
Committee of CPA Beijing, and Publicity Committee; a member of
Editorial Committee of CPA Beijing. He was appointed as independent
director of the Company since December 2009.

Resignation of Directors

The following directors have resigned from their positions in July
2009:

Mr. Qu Da-zhuang, born in March 1957, is a researcher and senior
engineer and with a doctor degree, member of Party Committee and
deputy general manager of SNPTC. Mr. Qu graduated from Beijing
University of Aeronautics and Astronautic in July 1982. He studied
at the department of applied mathematics and mechanics of Harbin
Institute of Technology from September 1984 and graduated with a
master degree, subsequently obtained a doctor degree in astronautic
engineering and mechanics in September 1993. Mr. Qu has been
deputy director, director and vice superintendent of planning office
of the research institute of Harbin Electrical Machinery Plant; deputy
chief engineer of the Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited
and superintendent of the research institute; deputy general manager
of Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited. In August 2000, he
had been deputy general manager of HE. In 2002, he was deputy
general manager of HE; chairman of the Board and general manager
of Harbin Turbine Company Limited. He was appointed as general
manager of the Company on 8th September, 2006, and executive
director on 29th September, 2006.
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Upon re-election of the Board, the following directors have resigned
from their positions in December 2009:

Mr. Zhou Dao-jiong, born in December 1933, chairman of Tao
Xing-zhi Fund of China, chairman of Investment Committee of
China, advisor to Society of Finance of China and Society of Market
Economic of China, and part-time professor in Beijing University,
People's University of China, Central South Economic and Finance
University, Northeast Economic and Finance University and Southwest
Economic and Finance University. Mr. Zhou began his career in 1950
and has been the head of Finance Department of Anhui provincial
government and secretary-general of provincial government, president
of China Construction Bank and chairman of China Investment Bank,
deputy executive director of Securities Committee of State Council,
deputy president of State Development Bank and chairman of
Securities Supervisory & Management Committee of China. He was
appointed as independent director of the Company since September
2000.

Ms. Ding Xue-mei, born in October 1959, professor and with a
doctor degree, now vice chancellor of Harbin Institute of Technology.
Ms. Ding graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology in 1986
and was conferred master degree. In 1991, she studied in Lausanne
Federal Institute of Industry of Swiss, engaged in research work
in this institute after she was conferred doctor degree in 1995. Dr.
Ding has been appointed as assistant professor, professor, tutor for
doctoral candidates in Harbin Institute of Technology, head of training
department of Graduate School and deputy director of Graduate
School. She was appointed as the executive deputy director in
1998. Dr. Ding is now the executive chairman of Joint Conference
for Directors of Graduate School of China and vice chairman of
Harbin Science & Technology Association. She was appointed as
independent director of the Company since September 2000.

Mr. Jiang Kui, born in January 1952, senior engineer (professor
level) with a bachelor degree, now serves as the chairman and
secretary of Party Committee of China Power Finance Co., Ltd. Mr.
Jiang graduated from Northeast Agricultural University, and began his
career in 1969. Mr. Jiang has been technician of Heilongjiang Electric
Power Design Institute; deputy section manager, section manager,
deputy section chief of Heilongjiang Electric Power Industry Bureau,
education section; deputy director of the education and training
department; director of the general manager’s office, deputy chief
financial official, and deputy general manager of the Heilongjiang
Power Co. Ltd. He was appointed as general manager of Heilongjiang
Power Co. Ltd. in November 2005. He was appointed as independent
director of the Company in September 2006.
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Supervisors representing shareholders

Mr. Wang Zhi-sen, born in 1950, senior engineer with bachelor’s
degree, is secretary of Discipline Committee and chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company, and a member of the
Standing Committee of Communist Party and secretary of Discipline
Committee of HE. Mr. Wang studied electric power engineering at
Qinghua University and graduated in December 1975. He started
his career in the same year and was appointed as deputy director
of Enterprise Cadre Administration Office of Department of Cadre
and deputy director of the general office of Personnel and Labor
Department under the Ministry of Machine-Building Industry. He
was appointed as director of Information Department of China
Electrical Engineering News in 1989, head and secretary of Party
Committee of Instrument and Meter Technology Institute under
Ministry of Machinery and Electronics Industry in 1992, deputy
director of general office and director of the director office of Ministry
of Internal Trade and secretary of Party Committee in January 1995,
secretary of Party Committee and vice general manager of China
National Agricultural Machinery Corporation in July 1995, head of
office of State Commission for Economic Restructuring and head of
the secretary administration division of the Economic Restructuring
Office of the State Council in 1996, secretary of Party Committee and
secretary of Discipline Committee of Huaxing Products Corporation
in 1998, director, secretary of Party Committee and secretary of
Discipline Committee of China Huaxing Group in 1999, secretary
of Party Committee and deputy general manager of China Huaxing
Group in 2001. In June 2007, he was appointed as a member of the
Standing Committee of Communist Party and secretary of Discipline
Committee of Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group Corporation
(currently known as Harbin Electric Corporation), and a member of the
Standing Committee of Communist Party and secretary of Discipline
Committee of the Company. He has been the chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company since March 2008.

Mr. Chen Guang, born in August 1964, senior engineer with a
Master's degree, is a supervisor representing shareholders of
the Company and director of the Corporate Management and
Development Department of the Boiler Company of the Group. Mr.
Chen graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in 1986 and joined
HE in the same year. He was appointed as a designer of the Design
Department of the Boiler Company of the Group, secretary of factory
office, deputy manager of the spare parts company, deputy secretary
and chairman of Labor Union of No. 2 Pipe Workshop, secretary and
head of Drum Workshop, head, director of Security Department and
secretary of No. 1 Pipe Workshop. He was appointed as the director
and secretary of the Corporate Management and Development
Department of the Boiler Company since August 2009. He has been a
supervisor representing shareholders since December 2009.
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Supervisors representing staff and workers

Ms. Lu Chun-lian, born in March 1959, senior engineer with
bachelor's degree, is a supervisor representing staff and workers of
the Company and deputy chief engineer of the Electric Machinery
Company and deputy director of the Electric Machinery Institute of
the Group. Ms. Lu studied Insulation Material in Harbin Institute of
Electrical Engineering and graduated in 1982. She joined the group in
the same year and was appointed as an engineer and deputy director
of Insulation Material Research Office under Electrical Machinery
Research Institute ,head and director of technology department of
coil factory in the Electric Machinery Company. She has been the
head of coil workshop in the Electric Machinery Company since 2002,
supervisor representing staff and workers of the Company since
September 2003, deputy chief engineer of the Electric Machinery
Company since March 2008, and deputy director of the Electric
Machinery Institute under the Electric Machinery Company since April
2009.

Mr. Gao Xu-guang, born in June 1971, senior engineer with
bachelor's degree, is a supervisor representing staff and workers
of the Company and head of Organization Department of the Party
Committee of Harbin Turbine Company Limited. Mr. Gao studied
Electrochemistry in Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering and
graduated with a bachelor's degree. He starts his career in July
1994. He was appointed as deputy director of the general manager’s
office, secretary of the Board and director of Corporate Development
Center of Harbin Turbine Company Limited. He has been a supervisor
representing staff and workers since 2003 and head of Organization
Department of the Party Committee of the Turbine Company since
October 2009.
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Independent Supervisor

Mr. Xu Er-ming, born in December 1949, professor and Ph.D.
supervisor with a Doctor’s Degree, is an independent supervisor of
the Company and Deputy Dean of School of Graduate Studies of the
Renmin University of China. Mr. Xu graduated from the Department
of Industrial Economics of Renmin University of China in 1978 and
stayed at the university after his graduation, where he worked as
tutor, lecturer, associate professor and professor. He was appointed
as the director of office for Canada-China Management Education
Program of the Renmin University of China in 1991, and later the
deputy director of the Department of Industrial Economics, the deputy
director of the Center for Business Administration Education and the
deputy director of Institute of Foreign Economic Management of the
Renmin University of China at the same time. He was appointed as
the Deputy Dean of Business Administration of the Renmin University
of China in 1996 and the Dean in 1997. He has been appointed as the
Deputy Dean of School of Graduate Studies of the Renmin University
of China since June 2006. He is now Deputy Secretary-General of
the Tenth Session of the Academic Committee, and a member of
the Third Session of the University Affairs Committee of the Renmin
University of China, a member of the Sixth Session of the Business
Administration Academic Appraisal Group of the Academic Degree
Committee of the State Council, Vice Chairman of the Chinese
Enterprise Management Research Association, and Chairman of
Beijing Contemporary Enterprise Research Association, independent
non-executive director of China Telecom Corporation Limited. He is
entitled to the State Council’'s special government allowances. He has
also been appointed as Associate Convener of the Fifth Session of the
Business Administration Academic Appraisal Group of the Academic
Degree Committee of the State Council, a member of the Advisory
Committee of National MBA Education, and a director of the Advisory
Committee for University Business Administration Education lead
by Ministry of Education. Professor Xu is a visiting professor at over
10 universities in China including Zhejiang University, and has been
teaching at New York State University at Buffalo, the University of
Scranton, the University of Technology, Sydney, Australia, the Kyushu
University, Japan and Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has been

an independent supervisor of the Company since December, 2009.
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Resignations of Supervisors:

After the re-election of the Supervisory Committee, the following

supervisors resigned at December, 2009:

Mr. Yang Xu, born in May 1964, is a senior engineer with a master
degree. He now serves as the secretary of the Communist Party’s
branch committee and deputy general manager of the Preheater
Company (FEZi22/A 7)) and the Boiler Company of the Group. Mr.
Yang graduated from Jilin Industry University in 1986 and joined
HE in the same year. He has been an officer in the enterprise
management department, a team leader, the secretary of general
manager office and an assistant of the director of the enterprise
management and development department of the Boiler Company
of the Group. In 2000, he was appointed as the deputy director of
the enterprise management and development department. In 2004,
he was appointed as the director of the enterprise management and

development department.

Mr. Zhang Hai-quan, born in September 1961, is a senior engineer
and master of business administration. He now serves as the deputy
general manager of the Company. Mr. Zhang graduated from Harbin
Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1984 and joined HE in the same
year. He has been an engineer of the enginery repairing workshop,
the secretary and an assistant of the director of the Communist Party
Committee Office of former Boiler Works of the Group. In 1994, Mr.
Zhang participated in the reorganization of HE to be a shareholding
enterprise and the issuance and listing of the Company’s shares.
Since November 1994, he has been appointed as the deputy director
of the general manager office, the deputy director of the planning
department and director of the enterprise management department,
and the director of the auditing and law department of the Boiler
Company of HE. In 1998, he was transferred to be a member of
the HE's and the Company's Standing Communist Party Committee
and director of the organization department. In 1999, Mr. Zhang was
appointed as the secretary of the Communist Party Committee and
vice chairman of Archeng Relay Group Company and Archeng Relay
Company Limited of the Group. He has been served as the deputy

general manager of the Company since October 2000.
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Mr. Liu Zhi-quan, born in July 1968, is a senior accountant and
master of business administration. He now serves as the deputy
general manager of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated from Harbin
Institute of Technology, majoring in industrial accounting with a
bachelor's degree. He subsequently obtained his MBA qualification
from the same university. He started his career in September 1991.
He has been an assistant of the director, the deputy director and the
director of finance department, and the deputy chief accountant and
director of finance department of the Boiler Company of the Group.
He was appointed as the deputy general manager of the Boiler
Company in April 2001. Mr. Liu has been served as deputy general

manager of the Company since September 2006.

Mr. Han Jian-wei, born in June 1955, is a researcher & senior
engineer with a bachelor's degree. He now serves as the deputy
general manager of the Company. Mr. Han started his career in
October 1973. He graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology in
1982 with a bachelor’s degree. He has been a designer of the design
division, an installation worker and the deputy director of the user
service division and the head and director of the production division of
Harbin Boiler Company Limited of the Group. He has also served as
the vice chief economist, the deputy general manager, the chairman
and the general manager of Harbin Boiler Company Limited. He has
been served as the deputy general manager of the Company since
December 2007.

Mr. Ma Sui, born in March 1957, is an associate professor and a
master of business administration. He now serves as the company
secretary of the Company and the director of office. Mr. Ma started
his career in 1976. He graduated from Northeast Heavy Machinery
Institute in 1982 and joined HE in the same year. He used to work on
staff training and corporate planning at the Group's former electrical
machinery plant. He has been the vice chancellor of our Staff College,
the deputy director of office, the director of the corporate planning
department and the deputy chief economist of the Company. He has
been served as the director of office since May 2003, and assumed
two additional posts as the director of the secretariat of the Board and

the company secretary since March and April 2006, respectively.
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The Directors are pleased to submit 2009 annual report and audited
financial statements for the year ended 31st December, 2009 of the
Group.

The Company and its principal subsidiaries are mainly engaged in
manufacturing and sales of various kinds of power equipments and
power station engineering services, details of which are set out in

Note 6 to the financial statements.

All the activities of the Group are based in the PRC, where 84.89

per cent of the Group’s turnover is derived from.

The export sales of the Group for the year ended 31st December,
2009 amounted to US$632.90 million, representing 15.11 per cent
of the Group's total turnover for the year. The Group's export

markets mainly include Asian, African countries and Russia.

The Company has seven principal subsidiaries. Harbin Electrical
Machinery Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales
of hydro generator units and steam turbine generator units. Harbin
Boiler Co., Ltd is mainly in the field of manufacture and sales of
boilers for power stations. Harbin Turbine Co., Ltd is mainly in
the field of manufacture and sales of steam turbine for power
stations. Harbin Power Engineering Co., Ltd is mainly in the field
of the turnkey construction of power station projects and complete
set of power station equipment. Harbin Power Plant Equipment
Corporation (QHD) Heavy Equipment Co., Ltd is mainly in the field
of manufacture and assembly of equipments such as large scale
thermal power, nuclear power and gas turbine. Harbin Electric
Machinery AC-DC Motor Limited Duty Company is mainly in the
field of manufacture and sales of medium-to-heavy-duty AC/DC
motors and nuclear power main pump motors and HE Harbin Power
Plant Valve Company Limited is mainly in the field of manufacture

and sales of valves for power stations.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries for the year ended
31st December, 2009 are set out in Note 44 to the financial

statements of the annual report.
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1. To transfer Rmb12.53 million to the statutory surplus reserve.

2. The Directors propose a dividend of Rmb0.068 per share for
2009 for shareholders who registered on shareholder’ list
before 3rd May, 2010; payment of dividends totally amounted
to Rmb93.62 million. Shareholders of H share will be paid in
Hong Kong dollar; the exchange rate used is based on average
closing rate of the People's Bank of China during the five
days preceding the date of 9th April, 2010, which is Rmb1 for
HK$1.1375. The dividend for every H share will be HK$0.0773.

3. The Register of members of the Company will be closed from
3rd May, 2010 to 2nd June, 2010, (both days inclusive). Final
dividends for 2010 will be distributed to shareholders whose
names appear in the Register of members of the Company on
3rd May 2010 before 6th August 2010. In order to qualify for
the final dividend for 2009, all completed transfers documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s Registrar, namely, Hong Kong Registrars
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than
4:30 p.m., 30th April 2010.

Details of directors and supervisors are set out in the Section

"Director, Supervisors and Senior Managers"” of the annual report.
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As at 31st December, 2009, none of the directors, supervisors
and senior management of the Company had any interest or short
position in the shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as
the case may be) of the Company and/or of any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which was
required to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest and short
position which any such director, supervisor or senior management
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO)
or which was required to be entered in the Register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which was required
to be notified to the Company and the HKSE pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Companies

as contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

There are service contracts between every director, supervisor and
the Company, each with a term of three years effective from 11th
December, 2009. Besides this, there are no existing and suggesting
service contracts between every director, supervisor and any

member company of the Group.

None of the director or supervisor of the Company has any
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in the contracts of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries is a

party during the year.

Details of the remuneration of the directors or supervisors of the
Company for the year ended 31st December, 2009 are set out in

Note 11 to the financial statements of the annual report.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID PERSONNEL

The five highest paid personnel of the Company during the year are

all directors and supervisors.

RETIREMENT AND BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the retirement and benefit scheme are set out in Note 39

to the financial statements of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the financial statements of the

annual report.

RESERVES

The Group's reserves available for distribution are Rmb7,262.22
million until 31st December, 2009. Movements in the reserves of
the Group during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial highlights of the Group for the last five years are set
out in the Section “Financial Highlights” to the annual report.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out

in Note 31 to the financial statements of the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold

or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or PRC Law, which would require the
Company to issue new shares to the existing shareholders

according to their respective proportions of shareholding.
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There is no major litigation of the Group for the year 2009.

The material contracts of the Group for the year are detailed in the
Sections “Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Disclosure

of Significant Events” of the annual report.

1. The aggregate amount of purchases during the period
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers represented
9.77 per cent of the Group’'s total purchases. Among which
the largest supplier is Yangzhou Chengde Steel Tube Co. Ltd,

representing 3.17 per cent.

2. 18.71 per cent of the total turnover of the Group during the
period was attributable to the Group's five largest customers.
Amongst which Huaneng Nanjing Jinling Power Limited
Company ((EgemRE[EEEA7F]) was the largest customer,

accounting for 4.24 per cent of the total turnover.

3. None of the directors, supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5 per cent of the Company’s share
capital) has any interest in above mentioned suppliers or

customers.

The use of listing proceeds of the Company for the period details in
the Section “Management Discussion and Analysis” of the annual

report.

As at 31st December, 2009, the Company had no entrusted
deposits in commercial banks or non-bank financial institutions and

had no due deposits that had not been withdrawn.
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On 21 November 2008, the Company was named as one of the
High and New Technical Enterprise (¥ #l{E3). According to the
PRC Law on Enterprise Income Tax promulgated on 16 March 2007,
the Company is entitled to a concessionary rate of income tax at
15% over 3 years, beginning on 1 January 2008.

Except for certain subsidiaries which are subject to an enterprise
income tax rate of 15%, other subsidiaries located in Mainland
China are subject to the PRC enterprise income tax at a rate of 25%

(2008: 25%) on its assessable profits.

In accordance with regulations of the State Administration of
taxation, the rate for tax rebate of the Group's new export products

contracts is 13 per cent since 15th October, 2003.

Pursuant to the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on Value-
added Tax ((HZEARKFBIIZED E TG )) promulgated by
the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation
on 18th December 2008, with effect from 1st January 2009, the
Company and its principal subsidiaries will be included in the
general framework of the value-added tax system reform and will
start implementing the new Implementing Rules of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on Value-added Tax (R #E A R HEF L ET
TITIEBIEHE4RA])), which allows the Company to deduct the value-
added tax incurred for the purchase of equipment. Other incentive
policies promulgated by various divisions of the state to implement
the Opinions of Central Committee of the Communist Party of China
and the State Council on the Revitalization Strategies for Historical
Industrial Bases of the Northeast Regions (LR - EFETRAR
EipRibi e EE TEEMIREEEEMNETER)) (Zhong Fa (2003)
No.11) and support such revitalization will remain effective.

For the connected transactions, see the details in Note 40 to the

financial statements of the annual report.
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The Independent Directors of the Company have reviewed the
connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules) referred to

in Note 40 to the financial statements and confirmed that:

1. Such transactions have been entered into by the Company in

the ordinary and usual course of its business; and

2. Such transactions have been entered into either (I) on normal
commercial terms (which expression will be applied by
reference to transactions of a similar nature and to be made by
similar entities within PRC) or (ll) (where there is no available
comparison) on terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the

shareholders of the Company are concerned; and

3. Such transactions have been entered into either () in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions or (Il) (where there is no such agreement) on terms

no less favorable than terms available to third parties.

The Company has already received annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director on his/her independence
confirming that his/her independence was in compliance with all
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and

he/she is an independent person.

As of 31st December, 2009, the share capital structure of the
Company comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 701,235,000
shares were held by the promoter (representing 50.93 per cent
of the entire share capital) and 675,571,000 shares were held by
overseas H shares holders (representing 49.07 per cent of the

entire share capital).
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Name of Shareholders

1. RAEEREEAR

Harbin Electric Corporation

2. HKSCC Nominees Limited

3. YIP CHOK CUIU

4. LAM MAN LAl

5. LU NIM KWOK ALBERT

6. CHEUNG YUM TIN

7. CHAN KAM SUEN

8. HO CHI KUN

9. KOO CHARLES MOON CHEONG

10. MOK WING YI

11.YIH SIU LAl HAR

As at 31st December, 2009, the top ten registered shareholders

who hold the most shares were as follows:

IR
Number of

Shares

701,235,000

673,086,598

360,000

250,000

250,000

200,000

100,000

100,000

74,000

50,000

50,000

BERBEIL
Percentage
of Shares

Holdings

50.93%

48.89%

0.02%

0.02%

0.02%

0.02%

0.01%

0.01%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

s
Note

BB R AR

State-owned

shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

H shares

H shares
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1)

INTEREST’S IN THE SHARE CAPITAL ANALYSIS OF HOLDERS
OF H SHARES (ACCORDING TO SHAREHOLDERS LIST AT
31ST DECEMBER, 2009)

HE BT
A BHRE HRB 2t
Number of Number of Percentage to

#iE Scope shareholders share holding Issued H shares
1-1,000 1-1,000 4 402 0.00%
1,001 — 5,000 1,001 - 5,000 64 170,000 0.03%
5,001 = 10,000 5,001 — 10,000 32 266,000 0.04%
10,001 — 100,000 10,001 — 100,000 31 988,000 0.15%
100,001 — LA F 100,001 above 5 674,146,598 99.79%
A&t Total 136 675,571,000 100%
ZEE=rH| MODEL CODE

RAOEZEH FEMAESEHNRNYEET
(ETRADMEEARENCRETADZRE °

EEEAERTA

KA RE2009 F(E MR EH B BT E BB T
CEMBADH SRR EE RE R -

SHBREE

2010F2A6H * ARERBA TENBEELHE
=RgE  EAREELXERRNARIREE o

&2

REREREIR AR ST I RE SR ES
IBRAR  BEZBMARESTMEBHE
RAF] -

AEEED
EBEER

—ZE—ZFMANH

The Company, having made specific enquiry, confirms that all
members of the Board complied with the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules throughout the period.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has complied throughout the year of 2009 with all
code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

The sixth session Board of the Company convened its third meeting
on 5th February, 2010 and appointed Mr.Wu Weizhang as the
General Manager of the Company.

AUDITORS

The current PRC auditor of the Company is China Rightson YueHua
Certified Public Accountants Company Limited, and the Hong Kong
auditor is Yuehua (Hong Kong) CPA Limited.

By order of the Board
Gong Jing-kun

Chairman

9th April, 2010
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To all shareholders:

For the year ended 31st December, 2009 (the year), all members
of the Supervisory Committee (“the Supervisory Committee”)
of Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (“the Company”)
carefully fulfilled their Supervisory Committee functions in the best
interests of the Company and minority shareholders as a whole
in accordance with the regulations of the PRC Company Law, the
Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Supervisory Committee
has carried out an all-around supervision on areas including assets
allocation, operation management, financial conditions and senior
management’'s work performance of the Company. In addition, the
Supervisory Committee participated actively in significant events of
the Company, such as the Company's production and management
etc. and gave a lot of positive opinions and suggestions, which
pushed forward the Company's work to smoothly develop.

For the Company’'s work during the year, the Supervisory
Committee presents the following independent opinions:

1. During the year, the Company strictly complied with the
nation’s laws and regulations, operated in accordance with the
procedures regulating listing companies, and duly executed
various resolutions passed at the shareholders’ meeting despite
the impact of the global financial crisis. With the priority of
“maintaining production, expanding markets, adjusting structure,
enhancing organic growth and seeking development” and based
on the philosophy of scientific development, the Company
confronted every difficulty bravely and adjusted to achieve
optimization and to maintain a steady operation. As a result, the
Company has achieved satisfying results from all works of the
Company during the year, contributing largely to its strategic
objective to become the best in China and one of the leading
power equipment enterprises in the world.

2. The Supervisory Committee is aware that the directors,
managers and other senior management have actively carried
out their duties in the best interests of the shareholders. They
have carried out carefully the resolutions and decisions from the
shareholder’'s meetings and the Board of Directors. In addition,
they did not act against the nation’s laws and rules and the
Articles of Association of the Company or damage the interests
of the Company, the shareholders and the employees.
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3. The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Company's
financial system and conditions and concludes that the
Company’s financial system has an integrated structure and
the financial works have been operated orderly according to
the internal control system and the financial management
system. The annual financial report and the dividend payment
scheme proposed by the Board of Directors for approval in the
Annual General Meeting, have objectively and comprehensively
reflected the operating results and asset condition of the
Company. The dividend payment scheme has taken into account
both the interests of the shareholders and the Company's long-
term development. Both statutory surplus reserve fund provided
in the year have observed the provisions of the laws and

regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company.

4. The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Report of the
Directors and concludes that the report gives an objective and
true picture of the works performed by the Company during the

year.

The Supervisory Committee sincerely appreciates the trust and
support from every employee of the Company and the shareholders.
With positively exploring new supervisory approaches and methods,
establishing detailed supervisory and inspect measures, the
Supervisory Committee will better perform supervisory functions
and work hard to achieve the Company’s production and operation
targets in 2010.

For and on behalf of the Supervisory Committee
Wang Zhi-sen

Chairman

Harbin, the People’'s Republic of China, 9th April, 2010



ARAR—BEREIERBCREAREMBEQRE) The Company has improved and perfected the Company's corporate

(RFEAREMBESFZORTRBESHNEH governing structure and standardized the Company’s operation
BT BIBRTEERRVEAREER @ REARE through strictly complying with the Company Law of the People's
{ o Republic of China, the Securities Law of the People’'s Republic of

China and the relevant provisions of China Securities Regulatory

Commission.

MR2009F 8 + ARRIZEET T(EABBHER During the year 2009, the Company fully complied with the Rules
ST ETRBIDM ST EE A E RSN Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
FIE © Hong Kong Limited Appendix XIV: Code on Corporate Governance
Practices.
A E

Shareholders’
General Meeting

BExg EEg
Board of Directors Supervisory Committee
Pt S

General Manager

REIED FHETED Mi5E HE0 RHXED Fercstd =g A BTHE =3 Bl
Planning Planning Marketing Quality ~ Technologies  WAZE WER Projects Empolyees XAbEB Supervisory
Department and Department  Department  Department General Secretarial  Department  Department  Corporate Department
Accounting Manager Bureau Culture
Department Office of the Department
Board of

Directors
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The Company protects shareholder’s interests, treats all
shareholders equally, and initiates participation of shareholders in
corporate governance and management. Shareholders as the owner
of the Company enjoy rights as laws and regulations provided and
shoulder commensurate obligations. The shareholders enjoy rights
to information and rights to decision-making for the Company's
important matters. The General Meeting of Shareholders is the
organ of authority of the Company, and it exercises its functions

and power according to laws.

The Harbin Electric Corporation, a state-owned company registered
in the People’s Republic of China, is the controlling shareholder of

the Company.

In 2009, the Company had an Annual General Meeting and an

Extraordinary General Meeting.

The major duties of the Board of Directors are to exercise the
discretion in management decision of the Company according to the
authorization by the Shareholders’ General Meeting with respect to
the development strategies, management structure, investment and
financing, planning and financial control, which are set out in details

in the Articles of Association.

1. Composition

The Board of Directors is the sixth Board of Directors of the
Company since its establishment, which is composed of ten
Directors, five of which are independent Directors. The Company
held an Extraordinary General Meeting on 11th December 2009,
during which members of the sixth Board of Directors of the
Company were elected. The newly elected Directors serve a

term of three years from 11th December 2009.
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Positions of the Chairperson of the Board of Directors
and the General Manager are held by different individuals;
their responsibility and duty are distinct and separate. The
Chairperson of the Board of Directors presides over meetings
of the Board of Directors and reviews on the implementation
of resolutions passed by the Board of Directors. The General
Manager is responsible for management and coordination of the
operation of the Company, implementation of the resolutions
passed by the Board of Directors and making decisions on a
daily basis.

Biographies of the members of the Board of Directors are
included in the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

section of this Annual Report.

Independent Directors

This session of the Company’s Board of Directors has five
Independent Directors. All the Independent Directors are
familiar with the powers and responsibilities of the directors and
independent directors of a listed company. During the reporting
period, all the Independent Directors attended the meetings of
Directors with the attitude of prudent and responsible; they fully
utilized their experiences and specialties, contributed greatly
towards the improvement and perfection of the corporate
governance mechanism and the important decision making
processes; they also provided pertinent, objective advices with
regard to important decisions and connected transactions of the
Company, further standardized the decision making process of
the Board of Directors and making this process more scientific,
therefore protecting the interests of the Company and the

shareholders as a whole.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the

Independent Directors about his/her independence.
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FARRARBITAREZEEH  THRLAA
MEBERE RESTE L2EMYHRR -
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FLFEEEH

Esns

Name of Director

EmBEELE Mr. Gong Jing-kun
MWZEE Mr. Zou Lei

HRE e A Mr. Qu Da-zhuang
BT E Mr. Duan Hong-yi
[Ehiki=biva Mr. Shang Zhong-fu
REFERAE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang
JElsE MR e A Mr. Zhou Dao-jiong
BRI E Mr. Jia Cheng-bing
FRHELL Ms. Li He-jun
TERZ+ Ms. Ding Xue-mei

=W E Mr. Jiang Kui

3. Meetings of the Board of Directors

During the year, four Board of Directors’ meetings were hold

to discuss the overall strategies, investment plans, operation

and financial performance of the Company. The Independent

Directors have no dissenting opinions regarding any of the

Company's resolutions. Attendances of the meetings are as

follows:

The Fifth Section of the Board of Directors

E2mMESEERRE BEHERE
Attendance Attendance in
Required (No.) Person (No.)
2 2

2 1

2 2

2 1

2 2

2 2

2 2

2 2

2 2

2 2

2 0

HER
Attendance
Ratio

100%
50%
100%
50%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
0%



ENBEESH

EEns

Name of Director

EmBEL Mr. Gong Jing-kun
MZEE Mr. Zou Lei

EOstEw S E Mr. Duan Hong-yi
REELE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang
[Slaakap s Mr. Shang Zhong-fu
HREELAE Mr. Sun Chang-ji
ERRIREE Mr. Jia Cheng-bing
TRBERL Ms. Li He-jun

Rt pitas Mr. Yu Bo

BEB A Mr. Liu Deng-ging

MBEEERABRANERRESARNESS
VRBTHEE  BEERETHESCHHEBE
B ERFEE - URRELEHRBREREZRE R
HEFENRTEAEBATARERAERE
EREUREET - ARREFNEETEEHEMNZ
EeARREITIF2RERFBLEXERBEAER
% ALELNSEE R ARARE -

RRRCRMEB B AR H P LR B+
(LTRBIEFETEFRINBRLETANESR
REAEENRETR - KARBERMEEEMHL
W MBEFCHEACHEPNEEZ2ET
(LHRARESFETEFXZNRESTA])

The Sixth Section of the Board of Directors

E2nMESEERRH BEHERE HE =R
Attendance Attendance in Attendance
Required (No.) Person (No.) Ratio
2 2 100%

2 2 100%

2 2 100%

2 2 100%

2 2 100%

2 2 100%

2 2 100%

2 2 100%

2 2 100%

2 2 100%

The relevant information and current development of the statutory,
supervisory and other continuous responsibilities of the Company’s
Board of Directors can be obtained by all Directors through the
Secretary of the Company in a timely fashion, so as all Directors
understand his/her duties, and the procedures of the Board of
Directors are properly implemented and applicable laws and
regulations are correctly complied. The Directors and the Board of
Directors’ special committees have the right to appoint independent
professional organizations for their service according to the
requirement of their duties; the reasonable costs incurred in those

occasions are born by the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies set out in Appendix
X of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as a model code for Directors of
the Company. Specific enquiries have been made of all Directors,
who have confirmed their compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies during the

reporting period.
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The Company has established four special committees, namely the
audit committee, the remuneration committee, the nominations
committee and the strategy development committee, whose

members are all Directors.

The Audit Committee of the sixth session of the Board of Directors
includes: Li He-jun, Liu Deng-ging and Duan Hong-yi. Two third of
the members of the audit committee are independent Directors and
Independent Director Li He-jun is the chairperson of the committee,
as in accordance with the stipulation of the Listing Rules, Article
3.21. During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
had reviewed the Group's annual and semi-annual performance

reports and financial reports.

The Company's Supervisory Committee consists of five supervisors,

of which two supervisors are representing staff and workers.

(A) The Supervisory Committee Meeting in the period under

review:

The Supervisory Committee held three meetings in the period

under review, the main contents of which are as follows:

1. The meeting of the Fifth Section of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 24th April, 2009, which passed the
Company’s Report of the Supervisory Committee, Audited
Financial Reports and the summary of Annual Report for the
year 2008.

2. The meeting of the Fifth Section of Supervisory Committee
was held on 7th August, 2009, which passed the resolutions
on the Company’s Interim Unaudited Financial Reports and
Interim Reports for the first half of 2009.

3. The First Meeting of the Sixth Section of the Supervisory
Committee was held on 11th December, 2009, which
elected Mr. Wang Zhi-sen as Chairman of the Supervisory

Committee.
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Related Matters of the Company in the Year 2009

1. KRk EEERET 1. The Company’s Operating Validity
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According to related laws and regulations, the Supervisory
Committee has supervised and examined the convening
procedures of the General Meeting and the Board of
Directors Meeting 2009, resolution matters, the Board
of Directors’ implementation of the General Meeting
resolutions, the enforcement of the Company’s management
rules and the efficiency of the Company's operating and
managing, and the Supervisory Committee deemed that
the Company has operated strictly according with the
related provisions of the PRC Company Law, the Listing
Rules, the Articles of Association of the Company and other
regulations; that the Company operates under scientific and
proper decision making procedure; and that the Company
further perfected its internal management and built favorable
inner control system in 2009.

Reviewing the Financial Situations of the Company

The Supervisory Committee carefully reviewed the
Company's Financial Balancing Report 2009, Profit
Distribution Scheme and the Audited Financial Reports
2009 (audited and submitted by Yuehua CPA Limited),
which the Board of Directors arranged to submit to the
General Meeting. The Supervisory Committee deemed that
the Company's audited Financial Reports 2009 was true
and credible, which objectively presented the Company's
financial situations and business results. The Supervisory
Committee approved the Company’'s audited Financial
Reports submitted by accounting offices both at home and
abroad.

The Implementation of the General Meeting Resolutions

The members of the Supervisory Committee participated in
the Board of Directors Meeting and the General Meeting.
The Supervisory Committee supervised the implementation
of the General Meeting resolutions and deemed that the
Board of Directors could carefully carry out the General
Meeting decisions.
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(C) The Implementation of Supervisory Duties by the Supervisory
Committee

The Supervisory Committee supervised the Directors and senior
managers of the Company in accordance with the related laws
and the Articles of Association of the Company, and deemed
that the Directors and senior managers of the Company carried
out their duties lawfully, without any act against the related laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association of the Company

or the interests of the Company.

The Board of Directors is responsible to establish and maintain the
internal control system of the Company, and to establish the Audit
Committee. The Company has established the audit department
internally, which monitors and supervises the disclosure of financial
information by the Company regularly or where necessary, as
well as operation and internal control activities, so as to ensure
the transparency of information disclosure externally, operation
efficiency and effectiveness in corporate control mechanisms.
According to the requirement of the basic specification of
corporation internal control of the Ministry of Finance, Securities
and Futures Commission, the Audit Commission, the China
Banking Regulatory Commission and China Insurance Regulatory
Commission, the Company had implementation of the internal
control assessment project from 31st October, 2008, and employed
PricewaterhouseCoopers to provide consulting service about this

project.
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The second meeting for the sixth section of the Board meeting
was held on 11th December 2009. During the meeting, it was
decided that China Rightson YueHua Certified Public Accountants
Company Limited would be appointed as the Chief Auditor for
the financial reports prepared according to PRC Accounting Rules
and Regulations for the year 2009, and Yuehua (Hong Kong) CPA
Limited would be appointed as the auditor for the international
financial reports pursuant to the authority of the Shareholders’

General Meeting.

The financial statements included in the annual report of the
Company for the year 2009 were prepared according to PRC
Accounting Rules and Regulations and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, and were audited by China Rightson YueHua
Certified Public Accountants Company Limited, the PRC auditor,
and Yuehua (Hong Kong) CPA Limited, the international auditor.

Information Publication and Supervision

The Company continuously improves information publication
management and enhances the investor communication
management. The Company discloses information on an open,
fair, true, accurate, complete and timely ground and strictly in
accordance with the related disclosure requirements of relative
laws and regulations, the Articles of Association of the Company
and Listing Rules, and improves the Company's transparency. In
order to improve investor relations, the Company issues its Interim
Report and Annual Reports timely, provides quality services to
investing visitors and participates in investor forums, and illustrates
to the investors the Company’s latest development and vision
through telephone meetings and performance presentations. The
Board secretaries department of the Company is responsible for
the information publication and investor relations. The Company will
perform its duties, continuously enhance its governance structure
and improve its management strictly in accordance with related
laws and regulations of securities supervisory organizations at home

and abroad.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HARBIN POWER EQUIPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

(A joint stock company established in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Harbin
Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 60 to 141 which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31st December, 2009, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statement based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31st December, 2009 and of the Group's profit and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

YUEHUA CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 9th April, 2010

WONG KONG PING
Practising Certificate Number: P04876
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Consolidated Income Statement

BE-FTAF+-A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2009

2009 2008
BfaE AR¥T AREEFTT
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’000
5 FEEKKRA Revenue B 28,629,522 29,903,544
=
i
% EREBRA Cost of sales (24,964,015) (25,896,464)
e
g FEERRF Gross profit 3,665,507 4,007,080
$
2
§ HhZEEKA Other income 7 568,962 391,260
)
) BEEH Distribution expenses (388,589) (425,281)
2
§ EREA Administrative expenses (2,325,715) (2,153,807)
©
o
& Hth B Other expenses (390,036) (74,000)
B Finance costs 8 (180,381) (195,325)
NGV Share of results of associates 20 34,764 23,320
BRBE AT R Profit before taxation 984,512 1,573,247
Hi1E Income tax expense 9 (226,871) (289,532)
AEE R A Profit and total comprehensive
RiGE WmB st income for the year 10 757,641 1,283,715
A 2R Attributable to:
PER% A AR ER Equity holders of the Company 606,206 1,041,837
DEUR R Minority interests 151,435 241,878
757,641 1,283,715
BRERN - ER Earnings per share-basic 13 Rmb44.0cents Rmb75.7cents
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R=BENF+=A=+—A
At 31st December, 2009

2009 2008
s ARET ARBT T
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’000
RBEE Non-currents assets
ME - B MERE Property, plant and equipment 14 4,261,254 3,802,837
"EYE Investment properties 15 248,724 271,383
FEfRT T E R Prepaid lease payments 16 342,018 350,438
H Patents 17 98,881 114,223
RIEFHIEEE Deferred tax assets 18 133,932 133,837
/N s ey Interests in associates 20 179,079 150,536
FFEHEMRE Available-for-sale investments 21 27,074 27,074
5,290,962 4,850,328
REEE Current assets
TE Inventories 22 14,230,160 12,941,218
FE W AR X Trade debtors 23 12,168,981 12,354,226
e EE Bills receivable 23 600,844 361,324
EmER - BE Rk Other debtors, deposits and
SEURE O] prepayments 23 4,852,058 6,537,067
FEfT T FAE R Prepaid lease payments 16 10,176 9,710
EiEAREWRK Amounts due from customers
for contract work 24 947,326 1,045,979
FEU R M B A Bk IE Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 25 76,908 66,353
AR HITF Restricted bank deposits 7,006 14,568
[EEi e iER N Pledged bank deposits 38 526,229 484,255
TEBBTE R Bank deposits 26 3,553,595 3,079,921
RITHEGF MRS Cash and cash equivalents 26 10,612,136 7,221,676
47,585,419 44,116,297
G =R Current liabilities
BEAREMNK Amounts due to customers
for contract work 24 509,964 757,056
FEATBR X Trade creditors 27 10,166,545 7,715,110
Hi R R EER Other creditors and accrued charges 27 3,173,130 2,055,636
BlES Deposits received 28 15,216,864 18,656,591
SRITET AR Derivative financial instrument 29 - 3,133
KRR Z B A RIRIAE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 25 51,757 50,069
RIS B FRIE Advance from holding company 30 20,478 13,470
AR —FRERZER Borrowings — due within one year 31 1,288,579 870,704
ERE & Tax payables 32 592,313 375,591
31,019,630 30,497,360
REBEERE Net current assets 16,565,789 13,618,937
HBRRBEERNAEE Total assets less current liabilities 21,856,751 18,469,265
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

2009 2008
B aE AR%T T ARBT T
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’000
MR &1 CAPITAL AND RESERVES
%N Share capital 3 1,376,806 1,376,806
Ea] Reserves 34 7,262,220 6,759,274
AENE QB EERS Equity attributable to equity holders
of the Company 8,639,026 8,136,080
DER R Minority interests 1,578,236 1,431,845
EREE TOTAL EQUITY 10,217,262 9,567,925
FRBARE Non-current liabilities
BlIES Deposits received 28 8,118,370 5,059,506
RIEWR A BIFRIA Advance from holding company 30 814,020 306,720
ER—FRERZER Borrowings-due after one year 31 2,707,099 3,535,114
11,639,489 8,901,340
21,856,751 18,469,265

=
=

FREREFERF

FNFOREM AL BRREHEFTEN
TEMANABBRIERM XA THE

April, 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

REE

WU Wei-zhang
BF

DIRECTOR

BAPE
SHANG Zhong-fu
£
DIRECTOR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 141 were

approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 9th
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Statement of Financial Position

R=BENF+=A=+—A
At 31st December, 2009

2009 2008
ihE=s AR%T T AREETIT
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FREBEE Non-currents assets
Y% - BE KRB Property, plant and equipment 14 1,039,374 927,582
R A E Prepaid lease payments 16 38,024 34,793
iNUEYSYNCI P i Interests in subsidiaries 19 2,413,428 2,413,428
REEE AR 2 s Interests in associates 20 85,105 60,084
FIHEMRE Available-for-sale investments 21 17,879 17,879
3,593,810 3,453,766
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 22 594,751 435,165
FEUER TR Trade debtors 433,762 309,603
HMERK - 2E RN FIR Other debtors, deposits and
prepayments 393,716 299,269
FEfT LA E R Prepaid lease payments 16 1,252 754
JE BT B R B3R IE Amounts due from subsidiaries 19 2,347,455 1,347,351
T BATF K Bank deposits 26 - 56,254
RITREFERRS Cash and cash equivalents 26 979,068 453,387
4,750,004 2,901,783
REBEE Current liabilities
FETBR TR Trade creditors 27 312,345 272,010
Hh e R R IEEH B R Other creditors and accrued charges 27 232,609 136,355
BlIES Deposits received 2,239,895 662,023
RIZERR A R 5RIE Advance from holding company - 567
I NGIERE Amounts due to subsidiaries 19 310,674 184,866
HAR—FREEZER Borrowings — due within one year 31 - 97,500
EXRFE Tax payables 32 17,521 26,428
3,113,044 1,379,749
REEEFE Net current assets 1,636,960 1,522,034
HBRRBEERNBAEE Total assets less current liabilities 5,230,770 4,975,800
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Statement of Financial Position (continued)

2009 2008
= AR¥T T AREFIT
Notes Rmb’000 Rmb’000
5 BAE#FE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
o
% %N Share capital &3 1,376,806 1,376,806
] fEH Reserves 34 3,527,720 3,505,670
=
g EREF TOTAL EQUITY 4,904,526 4,882,476
5
= FERENEE Non-current liabilities
E pezdi UNGIE ] Advance from holding company 292,460 60,540
o HAR—FREEZER Borrowings — due after one year 31 33,784 32,784
S
o
> 326,244 93,324
o
©
o
F 5,230,770 4,975,800
HNEOER 1M B2 EREREHEETN S The financial statements on pages 60 to 141 were approved and
T-ZFMNANBRBRIERM - WHTIHE authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 9th April, 2010
ERRESTEEE and are signed on its behalf by:
REE EhE
WU Wei-zhang SHANG Zhong-fu
2 3

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

HE_ZTZNF+_A=1t—BILtFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2009

REDRRBEEA 2BR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EERS
ERfif &g 4%
REX  RAEE Statutory Statutory EfifiE  REER RRER
Share Share  capital  surplus Other  Retained @5 Minority s
capital  premium  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests Total
ARBTR ARETT ARETR ARETR AREBTT ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETID
Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000  Rmb'000
RZFE\E-A-A At Tst January, 2008 1,376,806 1,980,295 709,850 531,614 - 2614428 7212993 1199417 8412410
FERRENRG AN G Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 1041837 1041837 241878 1283715
WEHBAAERE 2 ER  Purchase of addition interest in
subsidiaries from minority
shareholders - - - - 6,539 = 6,539 (9,460) (2,921)
&% Transfers - - - 28413 - (8413) - - -
HBARHE &R Reserve released upon de-registration
of subsidiaries = = = (2,844) = 2,844 = 10 10
RS (Hi12) Dividends [note 12) = = = - - (125289) (125,289 - (125289)
RZFENE At 315t December, 2008
+-B=t-H 1,376,806 1980295 709850 557,183 6,539 3505407 8136080 1,431,845 9,567,925
RERRHREGENR S Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year - - - - - 606206 606206 151435 757,64
ARFOERROBE Distribution to minority interest - - - - - - - (5,044)  (5,044)
&% Transfers - - - 1253 - (12831 - - -
& (Ht12) Dividends note 12) = = = - - [103260)  (103,260) - (103260)
RZBBAE At 31st December, 2009
tZA=t+-R 1,376,806 1980295 709,850 569,714 6539 3995822 8639026 1578236 10,217,262
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)

REFERBE - BRBEENZDEIRFIT :

(1) TAREIE

(2) REVEEBBAERD

3) REEREHAEE R

(4) IREEBBZALE o

BREFERBERARARNMBRRAZARE
12 ARBRENB ARG AENIRBHE T
ERNREZ BTSRRIV 0%FRBRE R - B
ARERZ R EBBRATESEA -

EERBABE RERERN—BM - BHKRE
EIAREMER 0% - AINEBRR °
REBEFERRDE  ZERBBAES A AR
B BAARFTZEEIBRER - EARALZ
EEBBRAEEERBERE  ZEARBERE
K2 EBIEINEMEAR25% °

ERREERARREEREEAR([RELE
RADBBETEEEER  EARAKRIEE
FEENATEERARITTRESREARNEE
EARBRFRAEEME 2 MR EZEAMR

HipfEERUBIN B AR D BRR 2 sz WiE
mat ARARFEEA o

In accordance with the PRC Company Law, the profit after taxation

is applied in the following order:

(1) making up of losses;

(2) allocation to statutory surplus reserve;

(3) allocation to discretionary surplus reserve; and

(4) payment of dividends in respect of ordinary shares.

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the relevant Articles
of Association, the Company and its subsidiaries are required to
appropriate amounts equal to 10% of their profit after taxation as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting standards to

each of the statutory surplus reserve.

Statutory surplus reserve is part of shareholders’ equity and when
its balance reaches an amount equal to 50% of the Company's
registered capital, further appropriation needs not be made.
According to the PRC Company Law, statutory surplus reserve
may be used to make up past losses, to increase production and
business operations or to increase capital by means of conversion.
However when funds from statutory surplus reserve are converted
to capital, the funds remaining in such reserve shall amount to not

less than 25% of the registered capital.

The statutory capital reserve represents the surplus arising from the
difference between the fair value of the net assets of the principal
business undertakings transferred from Harbin Electric Corporation
(“HE") to the Group and the nominal value of the State shares

issued to HE by the Company when the Company was formed.

Other reserve represents the discount on acquisition arising from

the acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries from minority

shareholders, which was credited to the other reserve.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)

B LA (3) % (4)8 B B FE 2 DB FI 408!
RHEEENEARRAREMBARNEEER
REBERFRETE  WARBRRGHAE -

EHARBAEEREREREERBRATES R A
RARREKB ARG TRIRERS o

BB ESR—ANEFENREHRE R HE
2N AR TRRZSEABRBEPESTE
AFistEz e B RBEB L REX 251 %
AIFfst B2 @E  MEUAREERE - R=2
ENF+ZA=+T—BARRZAIHEFERER
BEABEBEX 2 ERMEE 2B TR T
B ANREE431,000,0000(ZZZENF + AR
421,571,0007T) ° A0 EXPTat - SEE AES IR A]
S R REE T AR -

The amount of appropriation in respect of items (3) and (4) above
for any year shall be recommended by the directors in accordance
with the operational conditions and development requirements of
the Company and its subsidiaries and shall be submitted to the

shareholders in general meeting for approval.

No dividends shall be paid by the Company and its subsidiaries
before they have made up their losses and made allocations to the

statutory SUI’p|US reserve.

Pursuant to a document issued by the Ministry of Finance in August
1995 in respect of profit appropriations, the amount available for
distribution to shareholders is the lesser of the amount determined
in accordance with the PRC accounting standards and the amount
determined in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong. At 31st December, 2009, the amount
available for distribution to shareholders was Rmb431,090,000
(2008: Rmb421,571,000) representing the retained profits of the
Company prepared under accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. As also mentioned above, the balance of statutory
surplus reserve can also be distributed to shareholders in certain
situations.
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HEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_ZTZNF+_A=1t—BILtFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2009

2009 2008
ARBT T AREEFIT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
REER Cash flows from operating activities
BB AR Profit before taxation 984,512 1,673,247
A Adjustments for:
RERER Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 548,874 265,511
FEREBEERE Allowance for inventories 30,776 52,519
TE 1T 1 b FE E 5 Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 10,707 9,710
SRR Amortisation of patents 22,023 17,160
M B A Dividend income (1,298) (2,737)
ME - BB RERETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 374,589 436,996
REMENE Depreciation of investment properties 16,060 16,222
B Finance costs 180,381 195,325
BREWE « BE R HERE Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7,805) (3,117)
BREREMFEN = Gain on disposal of investment properties (510) =
REBMN RS T Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments (8,437) =
M - BE KRB RERER Impairment loss recognized in respect of property,
plant and equipment - 1,772
FLEHA Interest income (266,543) (237,545)
SRITERARAEERE Loss on fair value change of derivative financial
instruments - 3,133
W% RS Rt 5N Property, plant and equipment written off 2,300 19,803
SN R 8 Patent written off - 4,613
HESRITETABL Realised loss on disposal of derivative
financial instruments 1,659 -
M - BE KRR EER R B Reversal of impairment loss of property,
plant and equipment (1,714) (6,482)
NNVl Share of results of associates (34,764) (23,320)
EEESEHAIZ Operating profit before
RELEBERE working capital changes 1,850,810 2,322,810
FEEM Increase in inventories (1,319,718) (2,826,448)
JE AR G N Increase in trade debtors (362,899) (3,620,639)
R RGN Increase in bills receivable (239,520) (152,614)
HiEWER - ke RIERFIA Decrease/(Increase) in other debtors,
A () deposits and prepayments 1,684,279 (1,389,315)
EEA REMER D Decrease in amounts due from customers
for contract work 98,653 2,686,612
JRE LT B 5 /8 B FRIEE Increase in amounts due from associates (7) (2,829)
FEWNR R BARFEEM), S84 (Increase)/ Decrease in amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries (10,555) 974
HEAREN R Decrease in amounts due to customers for
contract work (247,092) (1,259)
FERHERZIE N Increase in trade creditors 2,451,435 2,447,719
HEth R Increase/(Decrease) in other creditors and
FET BRI, CRD) accrued charges 1,117,494 (607,971)
Bldizs CRd) /i (Decrease)/ Increase in deposits received (380,863) 4,912,109
JEASHE) P B 22 R) RIE 12 1 Increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 1,688 26,643
e ER & Increase/(Decrease) in value added tax and
H A e RIERE I, CR) other taxes payable 299,850 (656,524)




MERERER @

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

2009 2008
AR¥T R AREEFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
REERMEE2RESTE Cash generated from operations 4,943,555 3,039,268
BARE Dividends paid (103,260) (125,289)
RENIEIEEY Income tax paid (310,094) (361,375)
REERELECRESFE Net cash generated from operating activities 4,530,201 2,552,604
REXEK Cash flows from investing activities
HERFHEHREMER Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments - 1,000
RITE TR Decrease in bank deposits (473,674) (2,139,921)
FEMA Interest received 266,543 237,545
HEME - BEREREMER Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 21,521 66,291
HERBMEMER Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 7,109 =
HEBMNLHRERMER Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease payments 11,197 =
2 W& A RIS Dividend received from associates 6,228 3,714
BUFHEHRERS Dividend received from available-for-sale investments 1,298 2,737
BRI T 513 10 Increase in pledged bank deposits (41,974) (314,571)
BEWE  BELZE Purchases of property, plant and equipment (847,308) (1,275,178)
TEAT 1 A8 E R AN Additions to prepaid lease payments (5,513) =
BEEFE Purchases of patents (6,681) (9,794)
BREIMNRITEIRD, () Decrease/(Increase) in restricted bank deposits 7,562 (7,938)
SRATAET A T fF Payment on disposal of derivative instrument (4,792) =
WHENT B A R DR R < s Purchases of additional interests in subsidiaries - (2,921)
REERFAZRSTE Net cash used in investing activities (1,058,484) (3,439,036)
MEEL Cash flows from financing activities
HIBIRITE R New bank loans raised 343,986 733,226
g EME Other loans raised 99,354 27,300
IRIERE A B FRIELE N Advance from holding company 514,308 73,5632
ERIRITER Repayment of bank loans (829,927) (1,180,059)
B S Interest paid (180,381) (195,325)
EEEMER Repayment of other loans (23,050) (1,118)
DIETPERRAORE Distributions to minority shareholders (5,044) =
MEEXERFAZRSFE Net cash used in financing activities (80,754) (542,444)
RERBLEEYEM(BD) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and
: cash equivalents 3,390,963 (1,428,876)
FOERERASEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at the beginning of the year 7,221,676 8,681,542
ERSHURSEEINTE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (503) (30,990)
FRAEGRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year 10,612,136 7,221,676
RERFASEBUNETEZIM Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
at the end of the year
RITHEERRS Bank balances and cash 9,286,037 6,827,252
RITTE HIFHK Bank deposits 1,326,099 394,424
10,612,136 7,221,676
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Notes to the Financial Statements
BE-RBNAF+-A=+-ALFE
For the year ended 31st December, 2009

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a joint stock limited company
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and its H shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Its
holding company is Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE"), a state-
owned enterprise incorporated in the PRC. The addresses of
the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section of

the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the functional currency of the

Company.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the Group) are mainly engaged in
manufacturing and sales of various kinds of power equipments
and power station engineering services, which are set out in
note 5 to the financial statements. The principal activities of
its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 44

and 20, respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Standards and amendments effective in 2009 which
are relevant to and have been adopted by the Group

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments and

Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs") issued by

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”)

(continued)

(a) Standards and amendments effective in 2009 which

are relevant to and have been adopted by the Group

(continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007)
HKAS 23 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 32 & 1
(Amendments)

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27
(Amendments)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 & HKAS
39 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Presentation of Financial
Statements
Borrowing Costs

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising On
Liguidation

Cost of an Investment in a
Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate

Share-based payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations

Improving Disclosure about
Financial Instruments
Operating Segments

Embedded Derivatives

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Agreements for the
Construction of Real Estate

Hedges of a Net Investment in
a Foreign Operation

Transfers of Assets from
Customers

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2008, except for
the amendment to HKFRS
5 that is effective for annual
periods beginning or after
1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2009 in relation to
the amendment to paragraph
80 HKAS 39

Except as described below, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs has no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current and prior accounting periods.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) Presentation of Financial
Statements

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes
(including revised titles for the consolidated financial
statements) and changes in the format and content of the

consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard. The changes do not affect

the Group's segment disclosure.

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments

(Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments:

Disclosures)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures
required in relation to fair value measurements in respect
of financial instruments which are measured at fair value.
The amendments also expand and amend the disclosures
required in relation to liquidity risk. The Group has not provided
comparative information for the expanded disclosures in

relation to fair value measurements in accordance with the

transitional provision set out in the amendments.
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Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised Standards, Amendments and Interpretations that

RAIRE -

ERUHREEN HEBUERE

(BETA) B FEEHAEE
1EA2008H) Bt
teifa

BB RELR HEBHBERE LA

CHEN) 2009/ i 2

B g ER AR RS

B245R (KLIB3T)

BB gRHER AHNEBT B RE

F275% (BIEFT)
BAGHEA
EXVLACCHEN)

B g ER GiElEEESEY
F395 (BRI A)
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have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)
HKAS 24 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
HKFRS 1 (Amendment)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 9

HK (IFRIC)-Int 14
(Amendment)

HK (IFRIC)-Int 17

HK (IFRIC)-Int 19

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2009

2 Amendments that are effective for annual periods

Amendment to HKFRS 5 as
part of Improvements to
HKFRSs 2008’

Improvements to HKFRSs
20092
Related Party Disclosures®

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements’

Classification of Rights
Issues?

Eligible Hedged Items’

Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters?®

Group Cash-settled
Share-based Payment
Transactions®

Business Combinations’

Financial Instruments’
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement®
Distributions of Non-cash

Assets to Owners'
Extinguishing Financial

Liabilities with Equity
Instruments®

F—A—BERK LI EBH
CHENES SR D iha
s R-E-TFE-F-HYEHAR

BFE AR

¢ RCE-TFE-F-HYPZEFAR
BFEHIE AR

s R TE——F—-F-HAZREFR
BFEHE AR

¢ R-TE-TFELA-HYEFAR
BFEHRE AR

7 R E=F—-HF-HIZERR
B EHIE A

beginning on or after 1 July 2009 or 1 January 2010, as
appropriate

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2010

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2011

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2013
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations in issue
but not yet effective and have not been early adopted
by the Group (continued)

The Group has commenced considering the potential impact of
the new or revised standards, amendments or interpretations
on how its results and financial position are prepared and

presented.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain financial
instruments, that are measured at fair values, as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special
purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to

obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition

or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses

are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are presented separately from the Group's equity therein.
Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the
minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in excess of
the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated
against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an

additional investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group's interests and the minority interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity

and attributed to owners of the Group.

Business combinations

Acquisition of business was accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition was measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition were

generally recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.
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Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset and
initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after reassessment, the Group's
interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost
of the business combination, the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of

the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted thereafter
for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of net
assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. An additional share
of losses is provided for and a liability is recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Interests in associates (continued)

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of
acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is not lest
for impairment separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment as a single asset.
Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset,
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment in the associate. Any reversal of impairment
loss is recognised to the extent that the recoverable amount of

the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's

interest in the relevant associate.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of

business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and

title has passed.

Revenue from construction contracts are recognized on the

percentage of completion basis, as further explained in the

accounting policy for “Construction contracts” below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from sales of properties is recognized when the risks
and rewards of properties are transferred to the purchasers,
which is when the construction of relevant properties has
been completed and the properties have been delivered to the
purchasers and collectibility of related receivables is reasonably
assured.

Rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the relevant lease.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction-in-
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or for
its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
cost, including borrowing costs capitalized, less any recognised
impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation

of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,

commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment other than construction-in-
progress over their estimated useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the straight-

line method, on the following bases:

Buildings 3.23% - 6.47%
6.47% — 13.86%
10.78% — 19.40%
16.17% - 19.40%

Plant and machinery
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in
which the item is derecognised.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn and/or for
capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is charged
so as to write off the cost of investment properties over the

lease term using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is

derecognised.
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Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and any impairment losses. The
prepaid land lease payments are amortised on the straight-line

basis over the unexpired period of the rights.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at
the end of the reporting period, as measured by the proportion
that contract costs incurred for work performed to date bear
to the estimated total contract costs, except where this would
not be representative of the stage of completion. Variations in
contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to

the extent that they have been agreed with the customer.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that it is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the

period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an

expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is shown as amounts due from customers for contract work.
For contracts where progress billings exceed contract costs
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses, the surplus is shown as amounts due to customers for
contract work. Amounts received before the related work is
performed are included in the statement of financial position,
as a liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the
consolidated statement of financial position under trade and

other receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease

term on a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (RMB),
which is the Company's functional and presentation

currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the profit or loss, except

when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges

and qualifying net investment hedges.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies translation (continued)

(b) Transactions and balances (continued)

(c)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of the
security. Translation differences related to changes in
amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other

changes in carrying amount are recognised in equity.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of
the fair value gains or losses. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available for sale are included in the available for sale

reserve in equity.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate

at the date of that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of
comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in

which case income and expenses are translated at

the rate on the dates of the transactions); and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies translation (continued)
(c) Group companies (continued)

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as

a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the profit or loss as

part of the gains or losses on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributed to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the

borrowing costs capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the

period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised as revenue over the periods
necessary to match them with the costs for which they are
intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government
grants that are receivables as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they become

receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

The employees of the Group which operate in mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local government. The contributions are
charged to the statement of comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central

pension scheme.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because of
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group'’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that

have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that

it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred
tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is also recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Intangible assets
(i) Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite
useful lives are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent

accumulated impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)

(ii) Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an

expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible assets arising from
development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all the

following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible

asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and

use or sell it;

e  the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

o the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to

use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its

development.

The amount initially recognised for internally- generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets
the recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development

expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in

which it is incurred.
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Intangible assets (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Research and development expenditure (continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally- generated
intangible asset is measured at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
identified and recognised separately from goodwill are
initially recognised at their fair value at the acquisition
date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination are measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible
assets that are acquired separately.

Impairment

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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Intangible assets (continued)
(iv) Impairment (continued)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an asset may
be impaired.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
method.

Properties held for development for sale in the ordinary course
of business are stated at cost less any identified impairment
loss. Cost includes the cost of construction, financing and
other direct costs attributable to the development of such
properties. No depreciation is provided on properties under
development.

Properties under development

Properties under development are investments in freehold
land, leasehold land and buildings on which construction
work and development have not been completed. Properties
under development comprise prepayments for leasehold land
and land use rights that are measured at amortised cost less
accumulated impairment losses, and a component in respect of
the building that is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Cost comprises construction costs and amounts
capitalised in respect of amortisation of leasehold land
prepayments and borrowing costs incurred in the acquisition
of qualifying assets during the construction. On completion,
the properties are reclassified to investment properties,
property, plant and equipment or completed properties held
for sale at the then carrying amount. The prepayments for
leasehold land and land use rights in relation to the property,
plant and equipment are reclassified to leasehold land and
land use rights and are accounted for as operating leases. Any
difference between the fair value of the investment property
and its carrying amount at the date of reclassification is
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income. Properties under development are classified as non-
current assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to be completed
within the normal operating cycle and are intended for sale.
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Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are initially measured at the
carrying amount of the property at the date of reclassification
from properties under development. Subsequently, the prepaid
leasehold land component is measured at amortised cost
less accumulated impairment losses; the building component
is carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business less selling expenses.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on the
consolidated of financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees points paid or received that from an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period to the

net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Loans and receivables (including trade debtors,
bills receivable, other debtors and deposits, amounts due
from customers for contract work, amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries, amounts due from associates, restricted bank
deposits, pledged bank deposits, bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment losses (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-

maturity investments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset
is disposed of or determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss (see accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on

financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on financial

assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or
loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or

prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

—  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

—  default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade debtors,
assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are
assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective
evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period and observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset'’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of

return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a
trade or other debtors is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investment
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognised directly in equity.

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified
into other financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including amounts due to customers
for contract work, trade creditors, other creditors and
accrued charges, derivative financial instruments, amounts
due to fellow subsidiaries, advance from holding company,
borrowings, deposits received, are subsequently measured at

amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the

recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the

hedge relationship.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
expire, or when a financial asset is transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to another entity. If the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises
a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect is material).
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In the process of applying the Group’'s accounting policies,
management makes various estimates based on past
experiences, expectations of the future and other information.
The key sources of estimation uncertainty that may
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed below:

Estimated impairment on loans and receivables (including
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, trade and other
debtors)

Management regularly reviews the recoverability and aging
of loans and trade receivables. Appropriate impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit
and loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is

impaired.

In determining whether impairment for bad and doubtful debts
is required, the Group takes into consideration the aging status
and likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made for
receivables that are unlikely to be collected and is recognised
on the difference between the estimated future cash flow
expected to receive discounted using the original effective

interest rate and its carrying value.

Allowance for inventories

Management reviews the net realisable values and aging of
inventories and makes allowance for obsolete and slow moving
inventory items identified with reference to existing market
environment, the sales performance in previous years and
estimated market value, i.e. the estimated selling price, less
estimated costs of selling. A specific allowance for inventories
is made if the estimated market value of the inventories is

lower than its carrying value.
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REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable for
goods sold and services rendered by the Group to outside
customers during the year, net of value added tax (“VAT") and

sales returns, and is analysed as follows:

2009 2008
AREFT AREFIT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
EmiEE Sales of goods 20,741,812 22,976,686
EEARIURA Revenue from construction contracts 7,629,850 6,302,931
HEMERA Sales of properties 202,628 46,443
HEWA Rental income 40,801 35,848
BRAS R U A Services rendered 14,431 541,636
28,629,522 29,903,544

EFBT[E 5 E BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

E 5] Business segments

AEERME2009F 1 A1 BBREBNES
WSS ERESHE BN I - BBV
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The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 Operating Segments with
effect from 1 January 2009. HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard
that requires operating segments to be identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (the
"CODM") for the purposes of allocating resources to segments
and assessing their performance. In contrast, the predecessor
standard HKAS 14 Segment Reporting required an entity to
identify two sets of segments, business and geographical,
using a risks and returns approach. The directors consider that
the adoption of HKFRS 8 has not resulted in a redesignation
of the reportable segments for the Group compared with the

primary reportable segments determined in accordance with
HKAS 14, nor has the adoption of HKFRS 8 changed the basis
of measurement of segment profit or loss.
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
Business segments (continued)

Under HKFRS 8, reported segment information is based on
internal management reporting information that is regularly
reviewed by the directors, being the CODM of the Group. The
measurement policies the Group used for segment reporting
under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used in its HKFRS
financial statements. The directors assess the performance of
the operating segments based on a measure of segment profit
or loss.

The Group operates in five major segments as follows-main
thermal power equipment, main hydro power equipment,
engineering services for power stations, ancillary equipment
for power stations and AC/DC motors and others.

Principal activities are as follows:

Main thermal power — manufacture of main thermal
equipment power equipment.

Main hydro power — manufacture of main hydro
equipment power equipment.
Engineering services — providing engineering services

for power stations.

Ancillary equipment — manufacture of ancillary

equipment for power stations.

AC/DC motors and — manufacture of AC/DC motor

others and others.
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6. XEBMHEDE(E)
BARELEBNDBERIITRNOT

6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

Segment information about these businesses is presented

below:
20094 2009
EILE
KE XE B REE
IHRRE  IHRE  IERE B4 RER
Main Main Engineering  Ancillary E#KEf
thermal hydro services  equipment AC/DC
power power forpower forpower  motors R &
equipment equipment stations stations and others Eliminations Consolidated
ARETT ARETrn ARETrn AR¥Tn AR%TR AR%Tn AR¥ETR
Rmb’000  Rmb’'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’'000 Rmb’000  Rmb’000
TEEBUA REVENUE
SN External sales 19,220,791 1,893,429 4,299,673 1,251,301 1,964,328 - 28,629,522
DEUA Inter-segment sales 1,736,527 - = = - (1,736,527) =
ION Total revenue 20,957,318 1,893,429 4,299,673 1,251,301 1,964,328 (1,736,527) 28,629,522
D EPFEIH S E R AR/ TS EIRETE A o Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
AHEERE SEGMENT RESULTS 2,572,874 437,991 (60,962) 316,106 399,498 - 3,665,507
REDBETER Unallocated corporate expenses (2,535,378 )
BB Finance costs (180,381)
i A=gNa bl Share of results of associates 34,764
BRAR AR A Profit before taxation 984,512
it Income tax expense (226,871)
REE T Profit for the year 757,641
EE ASSETS
PEEE Segment assets 28,354,662 2438448 4576856 1,498,732 3,133,281 40,001,969
NN Interests in associates 179,079
RENBETEE Unallocated corporate assets 12,695,333
AftBEE Consolidated total assets 52,876,381
8 LIABILITIES
AR Segment liabilities 29,811,273 2,692,148 3,036,218 1,675,755 1,728,146 38,943,540
AN BETEE Unallocated corporate liabilities 3,715,579
AftEaRE Consolidated total liabilities 42,659,119
Htrgs OTHER INFORMATION
BAfEx i Capital additions 563,920 99,329 8,094 16,245 171,914 - 859,502
% - BER Depreciation of property,
RENE plant and equipment 271,128 43,687 10,329 13,135 36,310 - 374589
REANENE Depreciation of
investment properties - - - - 16,060 - 16,060
Lyl 45 Amortisation of patents 17,813 218 - 1,288 2,704 - 22,023
B hEER# S Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments 8,490 1,296 40 385 496 - 10,707
RERER Allowances for bad and
doubtful debts 390,798 46,730 35,622 22,218 53,506 - 548,874
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ERESE(E) 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
20084 2008
NE XE B kEE
THERE RS TiRRE B REM
Main Main  Engineering Ancillary S REAM
thermal hydro services  equipment AC/DC
power power  for power  for power motors  MEBIEIHE A
equipment  equipment stations stations  and others  Eliminations Consolidated
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
FRERRA REVENUE
bSO External sales 20493133 2,863,250 3,446,168 1,161,006 1,939,987 - 29,903,544
AHUA Inter-segment sales 1,201,875 - - - - (1,201,875) -
ION Total revenue 21,695,008 2,863,250 3,446,168 1,161,006 1,939,987 (1,201,875) 29,903,544
DEPE R E RIAIRITHIBERETEH © Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
PHEERE SEGMENT RESULTS 3,042,982 658,649 (346,162) 299,577 352,034 - 4,007,080
ReepBRNER Unallocated corporate expenses 2,258,695)
BB Finance costs (195,325)
i A=gNG bl Share of results of associates 23,320
SRITETALAEE Loss on fair value change of foreign
i currency forward contracts (3,133)
BRA AT Profit before taxation 1,573,247
Giia Income tax expense (289,532
FEE R Profit for the year 1,283,715
BE ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 26,896,743 2,551,123 5,414,333 1,438,544 2,866,305 39,167,048
REE AT B Interests in associates 150,536
FENBETEE Unallocated corporate assets 9,649,041
AftEEE Consolidated total assets 48,966,625
& LIABILITIES
AHERE Segment liabilities 26,613,834 2,694,706 2,838,118 1,137,670 2,100,603 35,384,931
REHBEIERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 4,013,769
afteaR Consolidated total liabilities 39,398,700
petiuh- OTHER INFORMATION
BARMSH Capital additions 1184707 176,905 12,303 26,213 71718 - 1,471,846
nE BER Depreciation of property,
RENE plant and equipment 325,893 48,965 9,844 12,992 39,302 - 43699
RENENE Depreciation of investment
properties - - - - 16,222 - 16,222
Lyl Amortisation of patents 14,206 262 - 691 2,001 - 17,160
BT HHERHE Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments 7,252 1,559 41 324 534 - 9,710
RERER Allowances for bad and
doubtful debts 183,383 32,442 (388) 10,610 39,464 - 265,511
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

R ESE(E) 6. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
BB 5 Geographical segments
REB 7T EEBBMATERGRPEAR The Group's operations are located mainly in the People’s
HAE([HED)ER - RS EWT Republic of China (“PRC"). The following table provides
an analysis of the Group's sales by geographical market,
irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:
2009 2008
ARBT T AREBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
BEA PRC 24,303,858 27,088,569
BHN Overseas 4,325,664 2,814,975
UG A Total revenue 28,629,522 29,903,544
REBZFEZEEMNBBEMRFEIEAN - B The majority of the Group's assets and liabilities are located in
—EEANF+_A=+—BE_ZTT)N\F the PRC. The assets and liabilities situated overseas account
+ZA=+—8 NRBINNEEMERED for less than 10% of the Group's assets and liabilities as at
REELEENBEEN10% - 31st December, 2009 and 2008.
HAith ZEFEUN 7. OTHER INCOME
HZEKWABFAT - Included in other income are the following:
2009 2008
ARBT T ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
iR B HA Dividend income 1,298 2,737
BEMF  BEMEEHEKE Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 7,805 3,117
BEREHE RS Gain on disposal of investment properties 510 =
EEMEMN LRSS Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments 8,437 =
TR 6 U Government subsidy 252,253 80,658
FEUA Interest income 266,543 237,545
FERLEH & T Profit from sale of scrap materials 20,522 23,279
Y~ B REERE Reversal of impairment loss of property,
AEfES (o) #% plant and equipment 1,714 6,482
H Other income 9,880 37,442
st Total 568,962 391,260
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

8. HBxZH 8. FINANCE COSTS
2009 2008
AR¥T T AREFIT
Rmb’000 Rmb'000
ERF BT Interest on borrowings:

—ERAFANEEERER — wholly repayable within five years 144,131 126,657
—BERAFAEIMEEMEIR - not wholly repayable within five years 39,282 68,668
183,413 195,325

B ERTELAZEH Less: Interest capitalised in construction
EEIRMEH in progress (3,032) -
180,381 195,325

REEENMCMERERTIR—REEEE
B WABARERA86% (ZTEEN\EFE :
BIBEELEREEN -

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose on the
general borrowing pool and are calculated by applying a
capitalisaiton rate of 4.86% (2008: Nil) to expenditure on

qualifying assets.

9. #IA 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2009 2008
ARET T ARBTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000

=eNE SRy i) PRC enterprise income tax
—ARFE — current year 239,022 351,325
—BAFEREBEBTE — overprovision in prior years (12,056) (15,061)
226,966 336,264
AEFELEFIFR (MI7E18) Deferred tax (note 18) (95) (46,732)
226,871 289,532

6002-800¢ Hoday jenuuy paywi] Auedwo) juswdinb3 Jjemod uigiey



EOHE Y M R I (EEE

H#3r6002-8002

B 75 R R M EE (a0

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

BIEE)

RZTBENF+—AZ+—H ' AARER
Al ARt EL— BRER=_ZZT+F
= A+ BEMBHFECEMERE - A2
ARZEENF—A—HB=F&15%
MEEBE -

RNEBBRIE LB A B ERTILAIR15%

2%)%$,€§5z1#ﬁﬁ?%frﬁﬁbwl\ + 7 B R B A BE A B
BIZASE H RERR T AR T 25% (= F

%)\i  25%) MR B EATSE o

REERBX I EGABRRARAZ U
mF -

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

On 21 November 2008, the Company was named as one of the
High and New Technical Enterprise (f=#Hfli>%). According
to the PRC Law on Enterprise Income Tax promulgated on 16
March 2007, the Company is entitled to a concessionary rate
of income tax at 15% over 3 years, beginning on 1 January
2008.

Except for certain subsidiaries which are subject to an
enterprise income tax rate of 15%, other subsidiaries located
in Mainland China are subject to the PRC corporate income tax
at a rate of 25% (2008: 25%) on its assessable profits.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income as follows:

2009 2008
ARBTFR ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
PR 70 A1 A Profit before taxation 984,512 1,673,247
REBZI5%OHEFE Tax charge at the enterprise income
tax rate of 15% 147,677 235,987
FE(L B & N R R R Tax effect of share of results of associates
M F & (5,215) (3,498)
EE BB A RIRT5R256%  Additional enterprise income tax in respect of
PNz (e FR1SHE the income tax rate of 25% for certain subsidiaries (34,974) 5,987
FEAERNERERESERBTAE  Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose
RFEBAHRBHOF L (30,718) (59,654)
FEAEREREEREER T Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose
MG HERBHT L 98,333 41,998
HA—RF BB R R ER T Effect of tax exemptions granted to a PRC subsidiary
HezrE (39,962) (4,747)
FRIARERERL®ANTIE  Utilisation of tax losses not previous recognised
BRNEE (3,744) -
RERTIAERE Tax effect of tax losses not recognized 107,530 88,520
BAEFEZBERT Overprovision in respect of prior years (12,056) (15,061)
REEBBEZ L Tax charge for the year 226,871 289,532
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10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

MNBREBREREF Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging:
2009 2008
AREBTR AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
BEIRAN(BIEESMNES Staff costs including directors’ and supervisors'’

BN (B E11) emoluments (note 11) 1,172,907 1,172,098
RIKEFEHE Retirement benefit scheme contributions 22,448 39,014
8 TR Total staff costs 1,195,355 1,211,112
RIFERAEM Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 548,874 265,511
GFEBREER Allowance for inventories 30,776 52,519
R 5 Amortisation of patents 22,023 17,160
TEAT - th 70 & R Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 10,707 9,710
Ei B Auditors’ remuneration 2,500 2,500
FERA Cost of inventory sold 23,013,191 19,642,081
BEMENE Depreciation for investment properties 16,060 16,222
Y - BEREETE Depreciation for property, plant and equipment 374,589 436,996
SRITETAAREBERE Loss on fair value change of derivative

financial instruments - 3,133
LESRITETABK Realised loss on disposal of derivative

financial instruments 1,659 -
Y% - HE REERE Impairment loss recognized in respect of property,

TR plant and equipment - 1,772
[ S F K Net foreign exchange loss 700 138,656
I 8 Patent written off - 4613
V¥ - S Mk i 8 Property, plant and equipment written off 2,300 19,803
MEHAZRER Research and development expenses 463,633 472,192
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e /”:'J§|J/TT1514§$TD EFEARFH

e ENEEE )

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 15 directors

B 155, and supervisors were as follows:
20094 2009
ER2 g% A8 BPE REE EEE  ZRE T RAf #BE Rt IZR  BEx  EERE A8 200083
Mr.Gong  Mr.Zou Mr.Duan Mr.Shang Mr.Wu Mr.Sun  Ms.Li MrYu MrJia MrLiu Mr.Chen Mr.Wang Mr.Gao Ms.lu MrXu Total
Jing-kun Lei Hong-Yi Zhongfu Wei-zhang ~Chang-i  He-jun Bo Cheng-bing Deng-qing ~ Guang ~ Zhi-sen Xu-guang Chun-lian ~ Er-ming 2009
ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Rmb’'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000
e Fees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
AtHE Other emoluments
IE8 Salaries and
AR other benefits - - - M 51 - - - - - 151 - 19 234 -
E{CEHHE Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes - - - 14 14 - - - - - 4 - 4 14 - 70
Ehieg Total emoluments = - - 478 533 - - - - - 165 - 143 28 - 1567
20084 2008
2% BAE BRiE ERE  RREE M WE RBER ERRM TSR HRE R Rt EEE R2 200883t
Mr.Gong  Mr.Qu Mr.Duan Mr.Shang  Mr.Wu Mr. Ms.Li MrZhou  MrJia Ms.Ding Mr Lang M. Mr.Gao  Ms.Lu Mr. Total
Jingkun Dazhuang ~ Hong-Yi  Zhongfu Weizhang JiangKui  Hedun Daodjiong Cheng-bing  Xue-mei Engi YangXu Xuguang Chundian ~ Chen Si 2008
ARBTL ARETTL ARBTL ARBTL ARETL ARBTL ARETL ARETR ARBTL ARMTL ARETTL ARBTL ARETL ARETL ARBTL ARMTIL
Rmb’000  Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb/'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000  Rmb'000
e Fees - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -
AfpEa Other emoluments
I4% Saleries and
AftRiE other bengfits - 554 - 490 406 - - - - - - 148 131 199 - 198
RINEFIE Contributions to retirement
benefits schemes - 13 - 13 13 - - - - - - 13 13 13 - 8
HHaE Total emoluments - 567 - 503 419 - - - - - - 161 144 212 - 2008
* EEBRTES *  Being executive directors of the Group
> BB IFNTES **  Being independent non-executive directors of the Group
*x SEMEE *** Being supervisors of the Group
EMFEENZEETMERARE1008 None of the directors received more than Rmb1,000,000 for
JC ° any of these two years.
RZZEENFR_ZBZNGF - AEE A& The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2008 and 2009
BHEZEMALHARRRZESZRE were directors and supervisors of the Company and details of
= H&dRwmE - their emoluments are set out above.
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12. B2 12. DIVIDENDS

2009 2008
ARBT T AREBTIT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000

RAENZZEZNFRE Payment of 2008 final dividend of Rmb0.075

FRAR0.0757T (2007: Rmb0.091) per share
(ZTTLF - ARK0.0917T) 103,260 125,289
EF2REAFERIREREARK0.068 The final dividend for 2009 of Rmb0.068 (2008: Rmb0.075)
TT(ZZEZENFE : AR¥0.0757T) @ i1z per share has been proposed by the board of directors of the
SAFTEREASHOE - Company and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

13. BRER 13. EARNINGS PER SHARE
REBMDEZAEERNARE The calculation of the earnings per share is based on the
606,206,000 T (ZEZEN\F : AR profit for the year of approximately Rmb606,206,000 (2008:
#1,041,837,000 7t ) & & F 0 #&E F 5 Rmb1,041,837,000) and on the weighted average number of
2 M 1 1,376,806,000 ( — Z T N\ 4 : shares of 1,376,806,000 (2008: 1,376,806,000).
1,376,806,0008% )51 & o
AEsygRkBANRECSHERFLE  WEE No diluting events existed as the Company did not have any
200912 A31H }2008F12 A31H IF R potential shares for the two years or at each of the end of
FELWE 2 GIREFARIERTE - the reporting period. Accordingly, diluted earnings per share

amounts for the two years ended 31st December 2009 and

2008 have not been disclosed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

AEE THE GROUP
B
BERE HERRE
R#2E  Furniture, E®HTE HEIR
EE#E%  Plantand fixtures and Motor Construction- Foy
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles  in-progress Total
ARETT ARETn ARETR AR%®Tn AR¥Tn AR®ET:R
Rmb’000  Rmb'000  Rmb’000  Rmb’000  Rmb’000  Rmb'000
A coST
R-ZEEN\E—A—A At 1st January, 2008 1,312,274 2,872,264 292,188 234,075 785,293 5,496,094
NE Additions 17,130 186,722 61,047 18253 1,178,900 1,462,052
B Transfers 113,923 383,353 24,386 6,631 (528,293) -
ki Written off - (51,660) (9,461) (5,617) (15,851) (82,589)
RE Disposals (24,387) (57,756) (56,418) (3,093) = (141,654)
R=ZEENF—A—A At 1st January, 2009 1418940 3,332,923 311,742 250,249 1,420,049 6,733,903
AE Additions 11,232 60,020 31,197 35,527 709,332 847,308
B Transfers 377,232 634,204 13,648 12,346 (1,037,430) -
e Written off (3,423) (25,673) (9,250) (7,369) - (45,715)
RE Disposals (4,558) (16,530) (4,348) (8,700) = (34,136)
R_ZEENF+-A=t-H At 31st December, 2009 1,799,423 3,984,944 342,989 282,053 1,091,951 7,501,360
2itiE DEPRECIATION
R-ZEEN\&—A—A At 1st January, 2008 529,392 1,794,975 157,554 147,825 10,300 2,640,046
KEERE Charge for the year 89,377 290,974 35,296 21,349 = 436,996
ME%ER Impairment = 663 = 1,109 = 1,772
WEERER R Reversal of impairment (161) (407) (79) (3) (5,832) (6,482)
e Written off - (49,959) (7,792) (5,035) - (62,786)
REMEH Eliminated on disposals (19,976) (26,093) (27,228) (5,183) - (78,480)
R=ZEENF—A—A At 1st January, 2009 598,632 2,010,153 157,751 160,062 4468 2,931,066
KEERE Charge for the year 48378 255,664 39,421 31,126 = 374,589
LR Reversal of impairment (26) (1,651) (2) (35) = (1,714)
WA Written off (2,458) (24,975) (9,014) (6,968) - (43,415)
REREH Eliminated on disposal (305) (8,868) (4,300) (6,947) - (20,420)
R-BBAFT=A=1+-H At 31st December, 2009 644,221 2,230,323 183,856 171,238 4,468 3,240,106
REFE NET BOOK VALUE
RZEEAF+-A=1+-H At 31st December, 2009 1,155,202 1,754,621 159,133 104,815 1,087,483 4,261,254
R=ZZN\F+=-A=1+-H At 31st December, 2008 820,308 1,322,770 153,991 90,187 1415581 3,802,837




14. W% « BERRE(E)

B 75 R R M R (a0

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

b N | THE COMPANY
3R
BE#RE #BERRE
R#2  Furniture, BHTH EIR
EEEBE  Plantand fixtures and Motor Construction- w@st
Buildings  machinery  equipment vehicles  in-progress Total
ARETR AR¥TR AR¥TRT AR%®Tn AR%Tz AR¥T:n
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000

A COST
RZEEN\E—A—A At 1st January, 2008 216,503 86,980 38,524 6,586 128,545 477,138
AE Additions 9 - 370 595 618,207 619,181
B Transfer 6,147 9,885 2,113 = (18,145) -
HisH Written off = - - - (1,536) (1,536)
RE Disposals (15,869) (86,981) (17,125) (480) = (120,455)
RZEENE—A—A At 1st January, 2009 206,790 9,884 23,882 6,701 727,071 974,328
NE Additions 536 - 572 1,538 123,347 125,993
EL B Transfer 325,643 174,116 - - (499,759) -
RE Disposals - - - (1,423) - (1,423)
RZEEAFE+-A=1-H At 31st December, 2009 532,969 184,000 24,454 6,816 350,659 1,098,898
25HE DEPRECIATION
RZZZ\F—A—H At1st January, 2008 28,005 23,321 23,469 3,802 - 78,597
TEERE Charge for the year 23,410 2,821 2,136 665 = 29,032
REREH Eliminated on disposals (15,922) (23,688) (20,892) (381) - (60,883)
RZZZNF—A—H At 1st January, 2009 36,493 2,454 4,713 4,086 - 46,746
rEEEE Charge for the year 11,627 764 840 613 - 13,844
REMEH Eliminated on disposals = = = (1,066) = (1,066)
R-BBAET=A=1+-H At 31st December, 2009 47,120 3,218 5,553 3,633 - 59,524
REFE NET BOOK VALUE
R-ZEEAF+-A=1-H At 31st December, 2009 485,849 180,782 18,901 3,183 350,659 1,039,374
R=ZENF+=-A=+-H At 31st December, 2008 171,297 7,430 19,169 2,615 727,071 927,582
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15. REYE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AEE THE GROUP
AREBT T
Rmb’'000
AR COST
RZTTNF—H—H At 1st January, 2008
r=ZEZTNF—HA—H and 1st January, 2009 342,540
BE Disposal (7,680)
R-BBAF+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2009 334,860
Bt ERBE DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT
RZZENF—A—H At 1st January, 2008 54,935
REFHAE Charge for the year 16,222
RZZZNF—HA—H At 1st January, 2009 71,157
NEFZEAE Charge for the year 16,060
BB K EH Eliminated on disposal (1,081)
R=-BEAF+=A=+-—H At 31st December, 2009 86,136
BRE R E CARRYING AMOUNT
R-EZAEFE+=ZA=+—H At 31st December, 2009 248,724
R=ZTZN\F+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2008 271,383
EZERAAEEREYE R FEER The directors consider that the carrying amounts approximate
REeEMBAREE - their fair value.
IS E Y B % B L B B AR EE S o The above investment properties are depreciated on a straight-

line basis at rate of 5%.
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REWE(E) 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
A EEREYENEMEFESRE - The carrying amount of investment properties shown above
comprises:
2009 2008
AR¥T R AREEFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
EFEREE - Land in the PRC:
FREATEAY Medium-term lease 230,729 252,236
EHARA A Short-term lease 17,995 19,147
248,724 271,383
AL FAER 16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
TEE THE GROUP
AREET T
Rmb’'000
5% COST
RZZEZENF—HA—H At 1st January, 2008
r—ZEZTAF—H—H and 1st January, 2009 488,269
NE Additions 5,513
BE Disposal (3,247)
R-BEAEFE+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2009 490,535
S £ ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
RZZTTNFE—-HA—H At 1st January, 2008 118,411
NG R 3 Amortise for the year 9,710
RZZTTNF—HA—H At 1st January, 2009 128,121
VNG SR 3 Amortise for the year 10,707
BB RSN Eliminated on disposal (487)
R-BBAF+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2009 138,341
BRENFE NET BOOK VALUE
R-BBAF+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2009 352,194

R-BBENF+—_A=+—H

At 31st December, 2008

360,148
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16. FEAftTHMBER(E) 16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)
AEBWFEM LEERAPEARLANR The Group's prepaid lease payments represent medium-term
B T E AR - FEN bR E AR E R land use rights in the PRC. They are analysed for reporting
EFEATESNET : purpose as follows:
o>
=l
@T 2009 2008
% AR¥T R AREEF T
I Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
=
=
% mEE s Current portion 10,176 9,710
LiI' JEmENEB D Non-current portion 342,018 350,438
]
N
S 352,194 360,148
o0
3
= NN THE COMPANY
3 ARBF 5
Rmb’'000
2N COST
T N\F—HF—H At 1st January, 2008
k=TT hF—HR—H and 1st January, 2009 38,809
NE Additions 4,982
R-EZThF+=-A=1+—H At 31st December, 2009 43,791
Rt ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
RZZTTENFE—-H—H At 1st January, 2008 2,507
IS Amortise for the year 755
RZZZENF—-HA—H At 1st January, 2009 3,262
IR S 5 Amortise for the year 1,253
R=-BEAF+=A=+-—H At 31st December, 2009 4,515
BRE R E NET BOOK VALUE
R-EFThAF+=-A=1+—H At 31st December, 2009 39,276

KRB NE+-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2008 35,547
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ARAWMBENIHEERSPEARK
MEBIRAR LA - BN LwEE

SARIE R FAEB ST - reporting purpose as follows:

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

The Company’s prepaid lease payments represent medium-
term land use rights in the PRC. They are analysed for

2009 2008
AR%T T AREET T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
mEnE s Current portion 1,252 754
ERENE D Non-current portion 38,024 34,793
39,276 35,547
5 17. PATENTS
KEH THE GROUP
AREEF T
Rmb’'000
2% COST
RZZTTENF—-HA—H At 1st January, 2008 224,821
nNE Additions 9,794
s Written off (16,315)
R_EENF—H—H At 1st January, 2009 218,300
NE Additions 6,681
R=ZBBAF+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2009 224,981
B REE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
RZZZEN\F—H—H At 1st January, 2008 98,619
RF S 5 Amortise for the year 17,160
G| Written off (11,702)
—ZTThF—HA—H At 1st January, 2009 104,077
I S 5 Amortise for the year 22,023
R-BEEAEFE+=-A=+—H At 31st December, 2009 126,100
BRERE CARRYING AMOUNT
R-BBEAF+=A=+—H At 31st December, 2009 98,881

HR_BEENE+=-RA=+—H At 31st December, 2008

114,223
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HRE(E)

ZENREHD B ERAERRC ERE
m o

ZERENNERHRAIE10FL BIRER

EEERERAEH -

EEBIREE
FRAXTEREHBERAT

17.

18.

PATENTS (continued)

The amortisation expense has been included in “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

The above patents have definite useful lives and are amortised

on a straight-line basis over 3 to 10 years.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised

and movements thereon during the year:

PEWIR X -
HitEKR K
FEZREEE
Impairment
of trade
and other
debtors, and it aE Hitr &3t
inventories Provisions Others Total
ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETE
Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000 Rmb'000

RZEZEN\F—HA—H At 1st January, 2008
ERRAEEER Credit to consolidated

income statement

R_EENF—HA—H At 1st January, 2009

HAGEEER Charge to consolidated
income statement

RZTEN At 31st December 2009

62,251 18,854 6,000 87,105
43,843 2,524 365 46,732
106,094 21,378 6,365 133,837
(5,324) 9,197 (3,778) 95
100,770 30,676 2,687 133,932
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19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NN | THE COMPANY
2009 2008
ARET T ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
B KA Investment, at cost
FEEETHEAR Unlisted in the PRC 2,413,428 2,413,428
FEUR KT8 A 7 FOR Amounts due from subsidiaries 2,347,455 1,347,351
FERHB A RIFRIA Amounts due to subsidiaries (310,674) (184,866)
4,450,209 3,575,913
WEFBEEERLEE - WRBETEER The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are
B - repayable on demand.

HIE AR Z A AR E B L BT 244 -

Details of subsidiaries are set out in note 44 to the financial
statements.

REIE AT 2R 20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
TEE AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
AREBTT ARBTIT AR¥TR ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
FREIFE ETREEE AR Cost of investment in associates
REKA unlisted in the PRC 95,555 95,555 25,422 25,422
FE(HEE A B M Share of post-acquisition profits,
OB B ez F)4% ) net of dividend received 81,878 53,342 59,683 34,662
FE U ES: & N B OB Amounts due from associates 1,646 1,639 - =
179,079 150,536 85,105 60,084
WERBEEEREEE - WRBRETEER The amounts due are unsecured, non-interest bearing and with
By o no fixed terms of repayment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PR AT

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

As at 31st December, 2009, the Group had interests in the

1B - following associates:
AEZLE
Proportion of
AIEMER/ nominal value
St NG of issued
DRER Place/ ERITRA capital/  BERRE
Form of Country of FTELSH BREEH registered  Proportion
kS business incorporation/  Principal place Class of capital held  of voting TELLEH
Name of entity structure registration of operation ~ Share held by the Group power held Principal activity
BRER-RBERE R REARENE  AEARLNE Lk 41% N%  BRER - TEERR SRR
(REB)EREAAA Established PRC PRC  Ordinary REEE  RRRBSRE
Provision of maintenance,
installation and on-site
services to owners of
turbines, boilers and
electricity generators
BESEEKEANSE RI PEAREAR HEARLAE TR 50% 50% EETIRE
BREAAH Established PRC PRC Ordinary Manufacture of electrical
equipments
RREREARIRERLT Ry PEAREANE  AREARLRNE LRk 27.28% 21.28% RBREEREESRERS
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of quality control
services for boilers
manufacturing
RBENRESRRER AR RU  REARENE  REAREAE LBk 44.56% 4456% HERHERRHH
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Manufacture & sale of
minteral beverages
UAEEI_L@J f%%ﬁﬁﬂ] R PEAREANE  REARENE LRk 43.69% 4369% RESNHERN
HEBRAR Established PRC PRC Ordinary Development of power
equipment technology
B E MAMERAR RY  REAREANE  AEAREANE LR 43.69% 4369%  MATERRTS
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of petrol station
services
RBEITER B RU  REARENE  HEAREAE LRk 43.69% 43.69% FREBHRAIRI
MRWEREARE Established PRC PRC Ordinary Development of new
technology on power
machine tools
REEREZH KBRS R HPEARENE  AEARENE LBk 41.72% N72% KHEE
BREEAH Established PRC PRC Ordinary Hydropower generation
REAEERENIRARA RU  REARENE  HEAREAE Lk 33.50% 3350% EBHIE
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of power
engineering
BRI R T Ry REAREANE  REAREANE LiEfk 30% 30% MR
Established PRC PRC Ordinary Provision of traveling services
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

20. MEFEAT 2 (E)

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

AEBZHERNR T EERIRENT ¢ The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

associates is set out below:

2009 2008

ARET T AREET T

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

BEE Total assets 712,129 741,288

FS=N Total liabilities (289,174) (392,263)

FEE Net assets 422,955 349,025

AEEEBENRFEE Group’s share of net assets of associates 177,433 148,897

WA Revenue 447,244 545,762

REERF] Profit for the year 88,226 61,563
ARFE B HEEE & A A Group's share of results of associates

TEER A i for the year 34,764 23,320
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

HEEMRE 21. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
FHEE MR ENARL - Available-for-sale investments comprise:
TEE b N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
ARBTRT ARBTIT AR®TRT ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
FRIE LT BEAFRE Unlisted equity securities in the PRC,

—RERAREREER

at cost less impairment

FETEFREREERT BRI LT
RABRTHRRES - EBEHRSEAHK -
BRARBEEGRNFERE - REREXR
RAIEERRE QA ETREERTE

27,074 27,074 17,879 17,879

The unlisted equity investments represented investments
in unlisted equity securities issued by private entities
incorporated in the PRC. They are measured at cost less
impairment at each end of reporting period because the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot

be measured reliably.

"8 22. INVENTORIES
rEE b NG|

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
ARBTRE ARBTT ARBTR ARET:T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
JRA L Raw materials 4,383,398 5,035,414 747 2,046
pest S Work in progress 9,020,256 6,974,897 594,004 433,119
B m Finished goods 473,476 507,717 - -
RS 2 BHERZEMRA  Properties under development for sale 167,025 315,605 - =
BN HE 2 BHERBER  Completed properties held for sale 186,005 107,585 - =

14,230,160 12,941,218 594,751 435,165
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. FEWARRR FEMRIR H b B R

ERFEHRIE

RTEFPZEERE AR - —RZEHE
F2MBIERMIE 37 BRE R EEKRER
PR EERR  AREERFEELE

23. TRADE DEBTORS/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The credit terms given to the customers vary and are generally

based on the financial strengths of individual customers. In

order to effectively manage the credit risks associated with

A e trade debtors, credit evaluations of customers are performed
periodically.

2009 2008

ARBT T AREF T

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

FEMARK Trade debtors 13,790,913 13,428,014

R E R Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (1,621,932) (1,073,788)

12,168,981 12,354,226

FEUS ZE BR Bills receivables 600,844 361,324
H fth FEUR Other debtors,

& RIEH KA deposits and prepayments 4,852,058 6,537,067

17,621,883 19,252,617

REEE RO FHRRELE R R KRR 2 Rk

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors net of

DT : allowance for doubtful debts at the balance sheet date:
2009 2008
ARBT T AREEFIT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
1A Within 1 year 5,506,511 8,554,404
1FZE2F 1 to 2 years 4,816,263 2,391,479
2FEIF 2 to 3 years 1,147,185 1,119,172
3FLAE Over 3 years 699,022 289,171
12,168,981 12,354,226
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

23. FEMWRRRTR FEUERR Hib B i 23. TRADE DEBTORS/BILLS RECEIVABLE/OTHER
DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

24,

ERFMHRIE(E)

PR SRBE R BRI R BN T

Movement in allowance for doubtful debts of trade debtors:

2009 2008

ARETT AREEFTT

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

FH4E Balance at beginning of the year 1,073,788 824,709
FEUERS /JEKTEJESTEEEW Impairment losses recognized on receivables 549,063 260,978
FSE:: 37 EiE i oo Amounts written off as uncollectible (919) (11,899)
FREH Balance at end of the year 1,621,932 1,073,788

—EENE+_A=+—HBHM-_ZTAEF
+ = A=+ — B S E EUWERFANE b fE U R
WAREBEREIABENEREE -

BESFERY (M)XK

The fair value of the Group's trade debtors and other debtors
at 31st December, 2009 and 2008 approximates to the
corresponding carrying amount.

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS FOR

CONTRACT WORK

AEE
THE GROUP
2009 2008
AR¥T R AREEFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
REFZBRESR : Contracts in progress at the balance sheet date:
SRR Contract costs incurred 10,909,986 9,489,378
FE( & A F0BR ] T8 R Recognised profits less recognized losses
ek, (E518) 175,949 (40,957)
11,085,935 9,448,421
W B FEIR T2 5B Less: Progress billings (10,648,573) (9,159,498)
437,362 288,923
Hep Represented by:
EEA R Amounts due from customers included in
current assets 947,326 1,045,979
EEASREAR Amounts due to customers included in
current liabilities (509,964) (757,056)
437,362 288,923

HE_ZTZT)\F+_A=+—HN=_ZZTh
F+-A=+—HIt ' WERFEHNEEE
|—.|I$ETA °

As at 31st December, 2009 and 2008, there were no retentions
held by customers for contract works.
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FEWe (#4) B RH B A
FEE

I RIBAEER - T3 - BEETERS
fRe Z2TNF+A=+—BM=ZZTZN
F+ZA=+—HNARBEEINERESN
BR{EE -

RITHER - RENFLEXEY

25.

26.

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) FELLOW SUBSIDIARIES
THE GROUP

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are
repayable on demand. The fair value of the amounts at 31st
December, 2009 and 2008 approximates to the corresponding
carrying amount.

BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

F5H ARH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008

ARBTR AREBTT AR®TR ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000  Rmb’'000

RITHETRIRS Cash and bank balances

31E A REIHR AT Time deposits, matured
TEHRTFR within 3 months

31E A LAB I HRRY Bank deposits, matured
TEHTF over 3 months

BIER=ZZZhAF+=_A=+—HBIE&*A
K #13,499,338,000 7T (20084 : AR ¥
9,671,726,0007T ) 17 A 2 A R A FIEIHY
$RIT - B L A RME IR SNIE 1938 18 h BI R
T AR B INE PR AR AR ©

R-ZEZAFE+ - A=+—HBEXHRT
17 3R = N4 F 1918 2 0.87% (2008 £ :
1.10%) °

ExeRnEmEEROITMNARER-

9,286,037 6,827,252 929,068 453,387

1,326,099 394,424 50,000 =

10,612,136 7,221,676 979,068 453,387

3,653,695 3,079,921 - 56,254

As at 31st December, 2009, a total of Rmb13,499,338,000
(2008: Rmb9,671,726,000) were denominated in Renminbi
and deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these
Renminbi denominated balances into foreign currencies is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

The weighted average effective interest rates on bank deposits
as at 31st December, 2009 were 0.87% (2008: 1.10%).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts approximate

their fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. FEHRRRRHGEMASRRETER

CHARGES

F&EH
THE GROUP T
2009 2008

27. TRADE CREDITORS/OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUED

RAF
HE COMPANY
2009 2008

ARBTR ARBTT AR®TRT ARETL
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000  Rmb’'000

& A B3R
Hib e LB &R

Trade creditors
Other creditors and accrued charges 3,173,130 2,055,636 232,609 136,355

WEE R ENERRZRERIITOT

10,166,545 7,715,110 312,345 272,010

13,339,675 9,770,746 544,954 408,365

An aged analysis of trade creditors at the en

period is as follows:

d of the reporting

rEE

THE GROUP
2009 2008
AR¥ET T ARBT T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
1A Within 1 year 6,941,123 7,039,443
1FEZ2240 1 to 2 years 2,877,157 470,791
2F E34F 2 to 3 years 267,834 67,951
3FMUE Over 3 years 80,431 136,925
10,166,545 7,715,110
RZZTZNF+ZA=T—BR=ZZTZTNF The fair value of the Group's trade creditors, other creditors
+ZA=+—8 ' ENFERR - HEMRK and accrued charges at 31st December, 2009 and 2008

ErrERREEEROTCTINARERE - approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.
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28. Wik
AEE

BEliZeREEPENIRMERTD K
WMZzEERE BREsd  HHF5A
K % 8,118,370,000 7t (2008 : A R #
5,059,506,0007T) AR EE RE T —E A4
FIRE T2 6HIES MBAERDALE -
mEBKIBHRAAREEAE+ @ ARNHS
FIMEERIRZS  WEARBDEE B
Wik &g RERHEERTINARIE -

—EEANE+_A=+—BMNZBETENE
+Z A=+ —ANAREBERINEENIR
AfEE -

Al

29. £RISTATH

28. DEPOSITS RECEIVED

THE GROUP

The amount represents the progress payments received
from customers in respect of work in progress. Included in
deposits received of approximately Rmb8,118,370,000 (2008:
Rmbb5,059,506,000) were the progress payments received in
respect of contract works to be commenced twelve months
from the end of the reporting period and were classified in the
statement of financial position as non-current. The remaining
balance represents deposit received for contract works to be
commenced within one year and were classified as current
liabilities. The deposits received will be used to set-off the

contract price upon the completion of contract works.

The fair value of the amount at 31st December, 2009 and 2008

approximates to the corresponding carrying amount.

29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AEME
THE GROUP
2009 2008
AR¥T AREFT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
SNEREBA 4D Foreign currency forward contracts - 3,133

RZZEZNFEF+ZA=+—H K&EERE
EEMEMINESL

At 31st December, 2009, the Group had no outstanding foreign

currency forward contract.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

30. REFERATNRE

EH
Vit

REBRARRAZBHRRTFBZHREA B
AE#20,478,000(ZZTN\F : AR
13,470,0007T) ° It FRIA A S 1K 14 BIE 508
BA—FA - —TTAF+_A=+—AM
—EEN\F+A=+—RANAREBEERD
RIEEREEE -

RA

RIFR AR IBEREIETHERGTEZE
3 D RIABARBEA42 450,000 (=2 F
J\F )R ARBES71,670,00000( =2 F
N\E : AR#306,720,0007T) ° BEFF =X
RAT8E(ZEZENF : 6.72/F)  RKE
EEE RGN - EREBRBREN+—E
AR TeRERBREILRIE - Bt SN
ARAE - —EThF+A=+—HBM
—EEN\F+ AT —HAABERIR
FREEE -

30. ADVANCE FROM HOLDING COMPANY

THE GROUP
Current

The balances of the advance from holding company is non-
interest-bearing, amounting to Rmb20,478,000 (2008:
Rmb13,470,000). The amount is unsecured and repayable
within one year. The fair value of the amount at 31st
December, 2009 and 2008 is approximate to the corresponding

carrying amount.

Non-current

The balances of the advance from holding company comprises
of non interest-bearing and interest-bearing loans amounting
to Rmb442,450,000 (2008: Nil) and Rmb371,570,000 (2008:
Rmb306,720,000) respectively with effective interest rate of
4.78% (2008: 6.72%) per annum and have no fixed repayment
term. The amount will not be demanded for repayment in the

next twelve months of the end of the reporting period and,

accordingly, the amounts have been classified as non-current
liabilities. Their fair value at 31st December, 2009 and 2008
approximates to their carrying value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. &= 31. BORROWINGS
rEE P NG|
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
ARETR ARETT ARETRTE ARETR
Rmb’000 Rmb’000  Rmb’000 Rmb’000
SRITRER Bank loans 3,703,735 4,190,179 - 97,500
HABIER Other loans 291,943 215,639 33,784 32,784
3,995,678 4,405,818 33,784 130,284
iR Secured 3,708,535 4,089,725 - =
FEHEIR Unsecured 287,143 316,093 33,784 130,284
3,995,678 4,405,818 33,784 130,284
ERERBRAT : The borrowings are repayable
as follows:
—FR Within one year 1,288,579 870,704 - 97,500
—E£hF More than one year but not more
than five years 1,880,570 2,342,952 - -
RFEE Over five years 826,529 1,192,162 33,784 32,784
3,995,678 4,405,818 33,784 130,284
B —FREHR Less: Amounts due within one year
PSEEN=L classified as current liabilities  (1,288,579)  (870,704) - (97,500)
2,707,099 3,535,114 33,784 32,784
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

31. ER(E)

RITEFNEMSREATINEEREN

31. BORROWINGS (continued)

The carrying amount of the bank loans are denominated in the

following currencies:

FEE RAH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008

ARBTR ARBTT AR®TR ARETRT
Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000  Rmb’'000

AR Rmb
ET(ITARE) uUSD

MENMANEEBGBRANREIN®%E
6.72%F /%8 - & FIFIREERFKAER o

K=BEhE+=A=+—H BEEER
SEAT(MEREAT ) BmEARE
MBITEREER(CERNF ) -

EXeRREmEEROIREMNARE
'fﬁ o

=

3,067,043 3,489,982 33,784 130,284
928,635 915,836 - =

3,995,678 4,405,818 33,784 130,284

All of the Group's borrowings carrying at rates ranging from
3.561% to 6.72% at both years. The contracted interest rates

are equal to the effective interest rates.
At 31st December, 2009, none of the Group's bank borrowings
are guaranteed by Harbin Electric Corporation (“HE"”) (2008:

Nil).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the

borrowings approximate their fair value.
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32. EXHE 32. TAX PAYABLES
AEH AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
AREBTT ARETT AR®BTRT ARETT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000 Rmb’000 Rmb'000
HED Value added tax 195,702 (44,714)  (39,728) (21,784)
EMBH Enterprise income tax 298,577 381,705 33,183 44,758
[ Business tax 32,048 (4,315) 21,948 1,414
Hoh Others 65,986 42,915 2,118 2,040
EREe Tax payables 592,313 375,591 17,521 26,428
33. & 33. SHARE CAPITAL

2009 2008
AR¥T T AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000

2t - EBTRER : Registered, issued and fully paid:

BAEARETR State owned equity interest shares of

mEARE1T Rmb1 each 701,235 701,235
HIREREEARBIT H Shares of Rmb1 each 675,571 675,571
1,376,806 1,376,806
B B ) S A O WS B 1 [R) LA B 365 P BSR R FR Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
INEERRFITRSN - BAEABRFIHRTE restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be PRC

HibigEzm o EISER -

investors or foreign investors, state owned equity interest

shares and H shares rank pari passu in all respects with each

other.
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AEBAFEER LFERFRENEHRREDIT
MAMBERRECCAZ IR ERBER

B 7% 3R 3% B & F (@)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. RESERVES

THE GROUP

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 65 of the

financial statements.

NN | THE COMPANY
EERE
EXGE N &
JRA%E  Statutory  Statutory REEF
Share capital surplus  Retained oy
premium reserve reserve profits Total
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
RZZZEN\F—F—H At 1st January, 2008 1,980,295 709,849 365,542 291,141 3,346,827
AEEREBALER Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 284,132 284,132
L Transfer to reserves = = 28,413 (28,413) =
RS Dividends - - - (125,289) (125,289)
RZZETNF—F—H At 1st January, 2009 1,980,295 709,849 393,955 421,571 3,605,670
AEERAKALE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 125,310 125,310
L Transfer to reserves = = 12,531 (12,531) =
B2 Dividends - - - (103,260) (103,260)
RZZBBAE+=A=+—H At 31st December 2009 1,980,295 709,849 406,486 431,090 3,527,720
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HEBEEE 35. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
2009 2008
AR¥T R AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
B AR AINSE=TH Guarantee given to banks and
IRITRLE IRHER financial institutions in respect of
general banking facilities granted to
external parties 5,000 14,119
HEWE 36. OPERATING LEASES
SBEREBEA The Group as lessor

FAMERERAL A ARM 40,801,000
T(ZZTZT)N\F : AR¥35,848,0007T) °
REBEANER BT E RN EREER
HERAGESFRHELRI16% - —HIAT
RAENMESLBEABEARBEE1E205F -

BLLEHREHRA - AEENABEAEALD

Property rental income earned during the year was
approximately Rmb40,801,000 (2008: Rmb35,848,000). The
Group’s properties held for rental purposes are expected to
generate rental yields of 16% on an ongoing basis. All of the
properties held have committed tenants ranging from 1 to 20

years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted

HERREEMATAES with tenants for the following future minimum lease
receivables:

2009 2008

ARBTT AREFT

Rmb’000 Rmb’'000

—ER Within one year 45,130 39,998

—E£RF In the second to fifth year inclusive 149,913 143,074

FF& After five years 270,400 128,425

465,443 311,497

TEENFT A=+ RAN-ZETNEF
A=+—8B AEEHELEHEK

o

i
+
7

At 31st December, 2009 and 2008, the Group had no

commitments under operating leases.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

A FRIE 37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2009 2008
ARETT AREETF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
BEMZE - WER&E Capital expenditure for the acquisition of
RE AR H property, plant and equipment — contracted for
—BENERR but not provided in the financial statements
SRR P B 414,039 315,838
EERA 38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

RZZEZNFEF+_A=+—H ' XEEER
ETEEERME—RBITREZER - %
FEEZREENT

(i IXEMEEARE170,442,00070(=
TENF : AR¥245,814,0007T) ©

(i) WITFRABARKES26,229,0007T(=
TT)\F : AR%484,255,0007T) °

(i) FENEHAEZT A ARES34,210,000
T(ZEENF : &)

BAEFIETE

BRE-NANAFRENRE - ARERRE
KRB RBN TREETHERRERER
REENERREEZES - AEERRERT
EXTEMNR2%HNEREEES BT
BEEATENS% AT « RIR L ERET
FREORBRREZESI BREHARA -
AEBERRATE B RANE REAKE
MXHEE: ERRHAAR  BRREKET
BAEATERRBFRE - YO 5IER
BETHERREXEERRAKE XM
BRAREBT  E@EHE®  REEARFPEHT
HEARNESEAE  THBRETHLER
REXEERIMNEERNRET X HBKH
% AREREEANEARE FIRKEHN
HEE -

39.

At 31st December, 2009, the Group pledged certain assets
with the following carrying values to secure the banking
facilities granted to the Group:

(i) investment properties of Rmb170,442,000 (2008:
Rmb245,814,000).

(i) bank deposits of Rmbb526,229,000 (2008:
Rmb484,255,000).

(iii) prepaid lease payments of Rmb34,210,000 (2008: Nil)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

In accordance with regulations issued by the local government
in 1996, the Group is required to make contributions to a
defined contribution retirement fund which is administered
by the Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau of the
local government. The Group is required to contribute 22%
of the basic salary of its existing PRC staff, while employees
contribute 8% of their basic salary. Apart from the above, the
Group is also obliged to pay pensions and retirement benefits
during the transition period. During the transition period,
pension payments are calculated by reference to the staff's
monthly basic salaries and period of service and are paid by
the Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau and the
Group. After the transition period, pension payments will be
paid by the Harbin Social Insurance Administration Bureau

only by reference to the payable amount of individual saving
account and the Group has no material obligation for the
pension payments or any post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions described above.
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40. FABALRS

(i)

(ii)

EERATANERMBARANES
&7z

BEMGEEERES 2 HE  A50
HFBEEEREMB AR RMAE
WERZREBRABEIINAARE
52,348,000 L(ZZETZENF : AR
49,223,0007T ) } A £#9,712,0007T
(ZZZNF : AR¥9,537,0007T) °

BHE_FTTNF+ZA=1+—H " 'K
SENTREEBZHBRREMH
RiEE A ARK125,426,000L (=%
T)N\F : AR¥219,369,0007T) °

BEREZEBRRARFIBZIER  BLE
Bf5E30 -
MEMPRREECENRS, &t

AEBEBAEENREREATEK
FEESIEHNEE(BRLE)BE
SEEMAEE - fHN AREXR S
SRR T ERFEG MR EREN—
B o BT AMMEEBEIAREI L)
BENMBARRZXZI  AEEHE
HBECBELEEER EFERR/M
LEACEEREERSEE LB
£=7-

ERVERKBEAREREE MER
RHEERT > AEEI NESHT
EAR—ERELE -

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i)

(ii)

Transactions/balance with holding company and
fellow subsidiaries

Pursuant to the services agreements signed with HE,
the service fees paid to and received from HE and its
subsidiaries amounted to approximately Rmb52,348,000
(2008: Rmb49,223,000) and Rmb9,712,000 (2008:
Rmb9,537,000) respectively.

For the year ended 31st December, 2009, the Group
made purchases from subsidiaries of HE amounting to
approximately Rmb125,426,000 (2008: Rmb219,369,000).

For details of the arrangement concerning balances with
holding company, see note 30.

Transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government (“state- controlled
entities”). In addition, the Group itself is part of a larger
group of companies under HE, which is controlled by the
PRC government. Apart from the transactions with HE
and fellow subsidiaries disclosed in section (i) above, the
Group also conducts business with other state-controlled
entities. The directors consider those state-controlled
entities are independent third parties so far as the

Group’s business transactions with them are concerned.

In establishing its pricing strategies and approval process
for transactions with other state-controlled entities, the

Group does not differentiate whether the counter-party is

a state-controlled entity or not.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

40. BABEANLR5Z(E)

41.

N7 \ﬁﬂ.ﬁi%igmx%/nﬂﬁﬁﬁur 5

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Material transactions/balances with other state-controlled
entities are as follows:

2009 2008

ARETT AREEF T

Rmb’000 Rmb’000

SHE Trade sales 24,557,871 28,097,220
REE Trade purchases 9,954,418 6,266,649
HEBEA S EEMNR Amounts due to other state-controlled entities 26,797,577 10,105,136
H b BA 1 3 R Amounts due from other state-controlled entities 14,232,523 7,527,381

BAN - AEEEEAFEEBP N —LEER
TMEREBETREIR  BERHRE
T ERMEAM—RIRITERE - EEFEL

RITRZNEL L EESRRBFORAK
= .
BT LERE EFeRRREMBEELE

MR ZFERAEEZE Q*ﬁikgf& g

BEXEHE

AEEEAEENERER  RERAKHE
ABRHERRNEE N - BASRRENERL
T AR ERBEF - FRRANERE
TE o

AEERBLERANES - ERHEELE
BYELHAE - REFAABRBEALERE K
SEAREEFHERBRRENORE - AR

EEEARRBTHL - HE-BBAF+=
A=+-BREE-TENET-A=t-
AILERERA  EHERHAE -
F o

R A

41.

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including deposits placements, borrowings and other general
banking facilities, with certain banks and financial institutions
which are state-controlled entities in its ordinary course of
business. In view of the nature of those banking transactions,
the directors are of the opinion that separate disclosure would
not be meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of the opinion
that transactions with other state-controlled entities are not
significant to the Group's operations.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended
31st December 2009 and 2008.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. The Group's
policy is to maintain a stable gearing ratio. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, bills and other
payables, accruals, less cash and cash equivalents. The gearing

ratios as at the balance sheet dates were as follows:

2009 2008
ARMT T AREEF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
BRER Total debts

BEA RIERR Amounts due to customers for contract work 509,964 757,056
FERTARRK Trade creditors 10,166,545 7,715,110
HE R R ETER Other creditors and accrued charges 3,173,130 2,055,636
Bz e Deposits received 23,335,234 23,716,097
YNEESRIEGIE S Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 51,757 50,069
RIERR A BIZRIE Advance from holding company 834,498 320,190
& Borrowings 3,995,678 4,405,818
42,066,806 39,019,976

B IRITERER - BT Less: Bank deposits, cash and bank balances
NIR& B R HIFR Restricted bank deposits (7,006) (14,568)
BHEBFR Pledged bank deposits (526,229) (484,255)
EHFER Bank deposits (3,553,595) (3,079,921)
RITHEF KRS Cash and bank balances (10,612,136) (7,221,676)
(14,698,966) (10,800,420)
R EE Net debt 27,367,840 28,219,556
4BE R Equity 8,639,026 8,136,080
B ARERER Capital and net debt 36,006,866 36,355,636
BERBRELE Gearing ratio 76% 78%
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

follows:

SHMEE Financial assets

2009 2008
ARET T AREETIT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
FEUBR R Trade debtors 12,168,981 12,354,226
BRI Bills receivable 600,844 361,324
H R R IE S Other debtors and deposit 4,852,058 6,537,067
EEA R Amounts due from customers for contract work 947,326 1,045,979
B ES VNG E O] Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries 76,908 66,353
FEUS B & B TR Amounts due from associates 1,646 1,639
FFHEMRE Available-for-sale investments 27,074 27,074
BRH TR Restricted bank deposits 7,006 14,568
EEBER Pledged bank deposits 526,229 484,255
TE BT 3R Bank deposits 3,553,595 3,079,921
RITHETF IS Cash and cash equivalents 10,612,136 7,221,676
33,373,803 31,194,082

ETHMAE Financial liabilities
2009 2008
AR®ET T AREEFTT
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
EiEA RIERR Amounts due to customers for contract work 509,964 757,056
FERTERIR Trade creditors 10,166,545 7,715,110
Hih e ke EA Other creditors and accrued charges 3,173,130 2,055,636
TRTETA Derivative financial instruments - 3,133
UNEESEPNGIE Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 51,757 50,069
RIZER% A B FRIE Advance from holding company 834,498 320,190
&k Borrowings 3,995,678 4,405,818
BliEe Deposit received 23,335,234 23,716,097
42,066,806 39,023,109




REB T ENBKTABEFHENRE
PR K Eo A FEUR TR - AN R B A FE A 3K - 18
B RITH/EEMRE - TXHINEZFSR
T ERRZ R & R % ERR 2 K
R -BEEETERERZERAR - AERRE
B 1A RO SREVE & 2 6 1 ©

FERR

RZZZNFFTZA=+—H  XEERX
SE T ARERBITEEMARNER R BE
BHREXEERRDGEEERBERMAIIZ
FERATREENREE - REEREE
RURREBNEERR  AEBEEED
BR-HEEEEEERE FEHERHE
B EIRFF A B(D - ARERIEE BRAEITEIIR
EIAHER - LoD - REERNSEE B
BRER X HEBOATRE SRR - AR
AT E IR R SR EE IR o Fhitk - AR
RAEERR  AEENEERBRE RER

o

=7

HRXZHTAZBRNMARITHERRE
EFARBETAREENENRT - BURH
BEeNEERRER - AEBETEBHESD
ZEERE - BRRRSHES @ -

RBESRER

REZZBEZNFRZEEEFE  AEEHE
MM EFERBEARTETEER NN
BEN BN HESEE o R - AEEER
TRERITNEER - —TTNFK - A5EF
MBS ERE RZETAF+=
A=+—HANBRckBRLEEEEAAR
#£10,612,136,0007L (=TT NF : ARKE
7,221,676,000) °

The Group's major financial instruments including available-
for-sale investments, trade and other debtors, trade and
other creditors, borrowings and bank balances and deposits.
The risks associate with and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure approximate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at
31st December, 2009 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.
In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposit and balances is limited because
the majority of the counterparties are reputable banks or bank
with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies. The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk, with exposure spread over a number of counterparties.

Liquidity risk

With regard to 2009 and thereafter, the liquidity of the Group
is primarily dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash
flow from operations to meet its debt obligations as they
fall due. The Group has good standing among its bankers.
The Group continued to enjoy a strong financial position at
the end of 2009, with cash and cash equivalents amounting
to Rmb10,612,136,000 as at 31st December 2009.(2008:
Rmb7,221,676,000).
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43. MHHEREEBERBUR(E) 43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
RBASRER(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
REER  ARESRAGBIHERAT The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the
g (ERBEFTHARITBRAR) - end of the financial position is as follows:
it _
& rEE THE GROUP
o
B 20095 2009
i
2 DWE  1RE2E  2FESE  SEMNL
o Less than 1to 2to More than @t
§ 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
| ARETRT AR%Tn ARBTrn AR¥Tr AR%ET:R
N Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
2
o BEEREMRR Amounts due to customers for
§ contract work 509,964 - - - 509,964
il JERTERSR Trade creditors 10,166,545 - - - 10,166,545
= Hin R R EAER Other creditors and
accrued charges 3,173,130 - - - 3,173,130
UNEES NGB e Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 51,757 - - - 51,757
R R RIFIE Advance from holding company 20,478 - - 814,020 834,498
&R Borrowings 1,288,579 570,570 1,310,000 826,529 3,995,678
BlizE Deposits received 15,216,864 8,118,370 - - 23,335,234
30,427,317 8,688,940 1,310,000 1,640,549 42,066,806
20084 2008
DIF 1F22F 25 EHE SE F
Less than 1102 2t05  More than Fay
1 year years years 5 years Total
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARET:R
Rmb'000 Rmb'000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000 Rmb’000
BEEREMRR Amounts due to customers for
contract work 757,056 - - - 757,056
JETERSR Trade creditors 7,715,110 - - - 7,715,110
Hin R R EAER Other creditors and
accrued charges 2,055,636 - - - 2,055,636
SRITETA Derivative financial instruments 3,133 - - - 3,133
UNEES NG B e Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries 50,069 = = = 50,069
R R RIFIE Advance from holding company 13,470 = = 306,720 320,190
B Borrowings 870,704 1,014,256 1,328,696 1,192,162 4,405,818
Bluge Deposits received 18,656,591 5,059,506 = - 23,716,097

30,121,769 6,073,762 1,328,696 1,498,882 39,023,109
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43. HBEREREEERBRK(E)

RS

AEEMEEZ MEEEHEL T EEHHE
EMENRITFEARRETAH - ARERE
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed rate
bank deposits and borrowings. The Group currently does
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need

arises.

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk for changes in
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing
borrowings. As at 31st December, 2009, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 50 basis points higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, profit for the current/prior year
would have been Rmb5,331,000 and Rmb4,579,000, lower/
higher respectively, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest
expense on floating rate borrowings.

Other price risk

The Group is not exposed to any equity securities risk or

commodity price risk.

Currency risk

Certain trade receivables of the Group are denominated
in foreign currencies. The management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and hedges certain exposure using foreign

currency forward contracts. The foreign currency forward

contracts do not qualify for hedging accounting.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

EXmEb(E) Currency risk (continued)
2009 2008
ARET T ARET T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
EMEBHEC EREE : Financial assets denominated in
foreign currencies:
FEUARK Trade debtors 2,816,687 3,041,673
RITHTFEIRS Bank balance and cash 700,145 629,871
3,516,832 3,671,544
2009 2008
AR¥T T AREEF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’000
EMEBHE 2 SRAE Financial liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies:
& Borrowings 928,635 915,836
2009 2008
AR¥T T AREEF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
HEMERTE The financial assets were denominated in
TREEHIIMNT the following foreign currencies:
BT EUR 45,776 80,083
E=VIn UsSbD 3,474,748 3,529,822
I HKD 17,345 59,847
Hith Others 2,157 1,792
3,540,026 3,671,544
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

43. MBEAREZRERBK(E)

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

EXmEb(E) Currency risk (continued)
2009 2008
ARETT AREF T
Rmb’000 Rmb’'000
EMEETE2SR The financial liabilities were denominated in
AEE#NET : the following foreign currencies:
ETT usb 928,635 915,836

FREAAREAFREE B AREER
Teema BEBHEEE - RERHEE
T8 MEBNRELEREERABAT

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end

of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the

Rmb exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,

BER S E - of the Group's net profit (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities).

2009 2008

fE & BB AT BRALAT

EF R il op=Z— hirwillznf-Z—

Increase/ Effect on Effect on

decrease profit profit

in foreign before before

currency rate taxation taxation

ARBFT ARBFT

Rmb’000 Rmb’'000

BT EUR 5% 2,289 4,004

-5% (2,289) (4,004)

ETT usbD 5% 220,169 222,283

-5% (220,169) (222,283)

BT HKD 5% 867 2,992

-5% (867) (2,992)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44. EEMBEATF

BHER-_ZTTNF+A=+—H  RaAkE
hERVIEENEEMBERRFENT

44,

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY
Details of the Company’'s principal subsidiaries as at

31st December, 2009, all of which are incorporated and
operating in the PRC, are:

NAFHEMER
HEEELH

Proportion of

HMEK nominal value of
HEAREHE Registered registered capital TEEH
Name of subsidiary share capital  held by the Company Principal activities
AREFT HE i
Rmb'000  Directly Indirectly
% %
RREREREREERR® 746,853 90.94 - SERE
Manufacture of boilers
BREERBERETAR* 709,237 87.37 - EEFURREDRETKRREDRE
Manufacture of steam turbine generator sets and
hydro turbine generator sets
RREBHIREREEAR" 136,000 100 - REMRETIERRSE
Provision of engineering services for power stations
BRRE=MEROERAR** 76,116 81.39 - FEBEERARE Mt EENRENER -
ERR  ERRRMEECIEREERHE
Development, production and sale of plasma-enhanced
and electrochemical surface ceramicised light alloy
materials, building aluminum templates and boards,
industrial special nature materials, electrophoresis paints
and electrolyte, relevant chemical products.
RREDNRRE SROBRAF 27,000 55.55 44.45 25
Trading
RREAREBEEREEL A 859,723 62.54 - EEBIAHE
Manufacture of steam turbines
BRRERNFHEREEREFAR* 10,000 = 100 B ERE
Property development
RESERAETWHRMBRAR* 80,000 100 - HERM
Manufacture of valves
REXTREERTRMATL 50,000 60 = BERBOR TR

BRARF *

Research and development of power equipment
engineerisation technology
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

44. FEMBABFM(E)

44. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

2

COMPANY (continued)

AFAEMER
HREELH

Proportion of

HMEXR nominal value of
HEAREE Registered registered capital TEEH
Name of subsidiary share capital  held by the Company Principal activities
AREFT B M
Rmb'000 Directly Indirectly
% %
KAB=MEPEEREEAR* 53,127 = 50 HEeHH  BRETIH  H4XkEBEIEER
HERRMNHAE  EFER - RFAMEREME
TRMRIEBERNEE - MIREE
Development, production and sale of electrochemical
surface ceramicised light alloy materials and
relevant technology; Manufacture, processing and
trading of electricity products, relevant raw materials
and accessories.
REER KN BEERE IR 10,000 = 100 HERFERNEESRBHRM
HRALERAR* Research and development of hydropower generation
equipment engineerisation technology
RERREEXRMERBERAA 20,000 - 90 FHERENEE
Property development and property rentals
R EREREREERATAR 8,000 - 78 FETRE
Manufacture of engineering equipment
RRERENEEXRHBRAR 20,000 - 35(3t) FHERENEE
(note) Property development and property rentals
RREABEREEIRERAR" 60,000 - 100 RnERE TR
Provision of engineering service to turbines
RREZILENESERAR 3,000 - 75 FERE
Property rental
*  BAREERA * Limited liabilities company
> RIDBERAAE B0 Joint stock limited enterprise

it BEREERAEREHEEXRGE
R A B 16% =L 1l & 7 6 i% 3R & T 2 B3
o ERREEEEEEE - At
AREEBALIE S — A LRI R AR AR

E=gR/ULREIIRT TBREFEAS
BXEREELMBEAR - EESRA/HT
HiIB AR ZHE R EUBERIEBRIT
E o

RELLA —RWEB AR EEEIEBER
FH-

Note:

According to the written declaration received from
certain shareholders who held 16% registered capital of
MREMEMEEXRHBR AT, these shareholders
would vote for the same decision as the Group and
therefore the Group could control more than half of the

voting power of the companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars

of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during the year.
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ANAER2009F6 128 (EHF) EF9:00
B APEARENERETIEVHETS
Yl = KB) H K395 BRE1 718 & i REE AR TT
T2008FERREAFAE r @RERAB
T HR200954 A24 AR R A F K BAFT

52 B EBEE -

2009340 - AR TIEARIREF B BB
BURBEBRAREEAKBAEEREEA
ETO

20094 A248 - ARG BHNERLEES
eF T+ o ReHRBEKREERTIER
REB AR R BB -

20096 A » AR A EABETILE WM ER
B TR TIEREE TR IMHEE
NBE TR IRBRES -

2009F7A1H * XRRHITES - L8
AR ERTERDRERNTES « 8K
IREETS o

200947 H21H - BARRRIAB WKL
AEERTRENEREAEHMER R
660MW B Fa 5 )T in AR 72 Al dE FE N B —
N EI I

200948 A7H  ARRIBHNEREES
EE+ZRERFRBBTARAMBHR
BEEERREEWMEMARAREEBRER
AARIGEEIHE -

Annual General Meeting

The 2008 Annual General Meeting of the Company was
held in the meeting-room on the 17th Floor, Block B, No.39
Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang
Province, the People’s Republic of China, at 9:00 a.m. on 12th
June, 2009 (Friday). All of the proposed resolutions set out in
the Notice of Annual General Meeting dated 24th April, 2009

were passed at the meeting.

On 4th March, 2009, Harbin Power Plant Equipment Group
Corporation, the controlling shareholder of the Company, has

changed its name to Harbin Electric Corporation.

On 24th April, 2009, the fifth session Board of the Company
convened its twelfth meeting to approve Mr. Feng Yong-
giang's resignation from deputy general manager due to

change of responsibility.

In June 2009, the Company’s turn-key desulfurization project
of Hebei Xuancheng Power Plant was honored: “National Best

Project” and “National High Quality Electric Power Project”.

On 1st July, 2009, Mr. Qu Da-zhuang, the executive director
and general manager of the Company has resigned from
executive director and general manager due to change of

responsibility.

On 21st July, 2009, our first self designed and made bi-cylinder
660 MW Super Critical Gas Turbines, also the first of its kind in
the world, has been launched successfully at Hebei Dingzhou

Power Plant.

On 7th August, 2009, the fifth session Board of the Company
convened its thirteenth meeting to review and approve the
joint investment by HE Harbin Power Plant Value Company

Limited and Vanatome.



2009123118 - KATI AR TRERHR
ERBEATARAFENEESEHKEM
NEARRAREENEEEKE -2
ERETRELE  PEEE  BRMAEL
- REESAE - BPREEARNDTNT
EEREERE  BRRLE  THREX
T Fars  BEBELEEBRARBL
EMTEE(BIYES)  WHAEETHA
2009F 12AMBRRAH=F FHERT
BRE - BATEBEQRIRRRER LT
MESE  BRBBRCALERBUEE  F
BRARTHBRINKRESR : EFELtT &
MR EAE - FTEEESEEIE 2009512 A 11
HEREI=4 o

H Bk W

2009128118  ARRIBHRTH A EE
CE—XGH - BETHOTRS:

1

(1) BESFREERARAEER &
RYZFEERERRREER

2) SERBEARGDAEEBTERENX
VMEEMEZES - 9 - BEEER
HENEZERKERE®E  HKEE
REE - -BHE- T FRELE
TZ28  BRZBEKEEFHE -
B8 BOAR  FRERGEEXEZ
B FMZEeXB8FHRER T
BoBRStE REEREETIEEZRE
REZBEEREFERMR  FHE -
iR ERREEEEERE

(3) BEEmTREL - REELE 2T
2hE  BEELEERANRRIRK
12

(4) BESZREERARTWE -

On 11th December, 2009, the Company convened an EGM
to elect the sixth session Board and the sixth Supervisory
Committee comprising shareholder representatives. Mr. Gong
Jin-kun, Mr. Zou Lei, Mr. Duan Hong-yi, Mr. Wu Wei-zhang,
Mr. Shang Zhong-fu were elected executive directors of the
Company; Mr. Sun Chang-ji, Mr. Jia Cheng-bing, Ms. Li He-jun,
Mr. Yu Bo, Mr. Liu Deng-ging were elected independent
non-executive directors (independent shareholders) of the
Company, the service terms for the new directors are three
years commencing from 11th December, 2009; Mr. Wang
Zhi-sen, Mr. Chen Guang were elected as shareholder
representative supervisors of the Company, and Mr. Xu Er-
ming was elected as an independent supervisor, and Ms. Lu
Chun-lian, Mr. Gao Xu-guang are employee representatives, all
new supervisors will serve a term of three years commencing
from 11th December, 2009.

On 11th December, 2009, the sixth session Board of the
Company convened its first meeting to pass the following

resolutions:

(1)  To elect Mr. Gong Jing-kun as Chairman of the Company,

and Mr. Zou Lei as Vice Chairman of the Company;

(2) To form four specialized committees under our
corporate governance structure, including the Strategic
Development and Reform Committee, comprising Zou
Lei (as Chairman), Sun Chang-ji, Wu Wei-zhang, Shang
Zhong-fu, Yu Bo; the Audit Committee, comprising Li
Jun-he (as Chairman), Liu Deng-ging, Duan Hong-yi;
the Remuneration Committee, comprising Sun Chang-
ji (as Chairman), Yu Bo, Duan Hong-yi; the Nomination
Committee, comprising Jia Cheng-bing (as Chairman), Li

Jun-he, Shang Zhong-fu;

(3) To engage Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, Mr. Zhang Hai-quan,
Mr. Liu Zhi-quan, Mr. Han Jian-wei as deputy general

managers of the Company;

(4) To engage Mr. Ma Sui as the Company Secretary of the

Company.
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Shareholders

Electrical Machinery Company
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The Company Turbine Company
BT

RIRTT DAy NG|

CCBC Turbine Company
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Electrical Machinery Company

2010F2A6H ' ARRBHATENEES
CFE-NEH BEIREELEAELDQFE
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Name of the company

10.

11.

On 11th December, 2009, the sixth session Board of the
Company convened its first meeting to pass the following
resolution: to elect Mr. Wang Zhi-sen as Chairman of the

Supervisory Committee of the Company.

On 29th December, 2009, the Company and China
Construction Bank Corporation (“CCBC") entered into a written
agreement, pursuant to which CCBC has agreed to transfer its
shareholdings amounting to Rmb16 million in Harbin Electrical
Machinery Co. Ltd. (“Electrical Machinery”, a subsidiary of
the Company), representing 2.26% of the total share capital
of Electrical Machinery, and its shareholdings amounting to
Rmb72 million in Harbin Turbine Co. Ltd. (“Harbin Turbine”,
a subsidiary of the Company), representing 8.37% of the
total share capital of Harbin Turbine, to the Company. The
consideration for the transfer was Rmb213.68 million. Changes

in shareholdings before and after the acquisition are as follows:

s B 7 B A g2t e

Shareholdings before
the acquisition
(%)

53,762.298 %62.53%
537,622,900 shares 62.53%
61,966.698 1%87.37%
619,666,900 shares 87.37%
7,2008 /%8.37%
72,000,000 shares 8.37%
1,600 1%2.26%

16,000,000 shares 2.26%

Shareholdings after
the acquisition
(%)

60,962.29& %70.90%
609,622,900 shares 70.90%
63,566.69% 1%89.63%
635,666,900 shares 89.63%
0

0
0
0

12. On 5th February, 2010, the sixth session Board of the

Company convened its third meeting to engage Mr. Wu Wei-

zhang as general manager of the Company.
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13. On 5th February, 2010,

14.

the sixth session Board of the

Company convened its third meeting to approve the Report

about Establishment of HEC Modern Production and Services

Corporation, so as to consolidate service businesses like power

station maintenance, reconstruction, and supply of equipment.

Material Contracts

(1)

On 13th January, 2009, the Company and CNNC signed a
supply contract of the nuclear power CMT and PRHRHX
equipment for the Sanmen project in Zhejiang, which is

the first of its kind in our product portfolio.

On 25th February, 2009, the Company and Coast &
Energy Co. of India signed a supply contract of 2X600MW
sub-critical coal-fired thermal power (BTG) for the Tuticorin
project in India, which further enlarged our market share

in India.

On 3rd April, 2009, the Company and KESC of Pakistan
signed a turn-key contract of Combined Cycle Power

Plants for the Bin Qasim project in Pakistan.

On 7th April, 2009, the Company and Shandong Luneng
Material Corporation signed a supply contract of
2X600MW supercritical coal-fired units for the Baoging

project in Heilongjiang.

On 29th April, 2009, the Company and MIPP International
signed a supply contract of 4X360MW Turbine and power
generator for the Ucchpinda project in India, which is our

first directly export of 300MW main equipment.

On 26th July, 2009, the Company and CNNC signed
a supply contract of two AP1000 steam generator of

nuclear power plant for the Taohuajiang project in Hunan.
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15.

(7)  On 7th August, 2009, the Company and Shandong Electric
power Construction No.2 Company signed a supply
contract of 2X660MW supercritical coal-fired units for the
Amravati project in India, which marked the first entry
our 600MW supercritical turbine products into the Indian

market.

(8) On 31st October, 2009, the Company and China
Guangdong Nuclear Power Group signed a supply contract
of two AP1000 nuclear power conventional island and 1#

steam generator for the Xianning project in Hubei.

(9) On 14th November, 2009, the Company and Lanco of
India signed a supply contract of 2X660MW supercritical
turbine and generator for the Karnataka project in
India, which is our first directly export of 600MWmain

equipment.

(10) On 24th December, 2009, the Company jointly with
CNEEC and Banpu of Thailand signed a turn-key contract
of 3X600MW sub-critical coal-fired thermal power for the

Hongsa project in Laos.

Scientific Research and Development

On 30th December, 2009, the Company won the special
prize of national scientific and technology progress by virtue
of the scientific research and industrialization of 1000MW

supercritical coal-fired thermal power units.

On 30th December, 2009, the Company won the first prize of
national machinery and industrial technology by virtue of the
application of twisted blade and flow field performance theory

in large turbine.

Save for disclosed above, the Company does not have any
other discloseable matters which are material but are not

disclosed.
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REGISTERED NAME OF THE COMPANY

REREBIRERNERAF

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited

REGISTERED ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block 3

Nangang District High Technology Production Base
Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Registration No.2301001003796

OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’'s Republic of China
Postcode: 150040

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727
Fax: 86-451-82135700

Website: www.chpec.com

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

20th Floor, Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Gong Jing-kun

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Wu Wei-zhang
Ma Sui
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Ma Sui

Yuehua CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
7/F., Allied Kajima Building
138 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

China Rightson YueHua Certified Public Accountant

Company Limited

8-9/F Block A
Corporation Bldg

No. 35 Finance Street
Xicheng District
Beijing PRC

100140

as to PRC Law

HAIWEN & PARTNERS

Room 1016, Beijing Silver Tower
No.2, Dongsanhuan North Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing

PRC

as to Hong Kong Law
Richard Butler

20th Floor

Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road
Central

Hong Kong

H Shares
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 1133
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22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258
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B
ERRER183%

A FIFR D
17#81712—1716 =

BEEBOREROERAA

ESERER

H

IS FRE T

HHjlE

= KRB I BR395RBEE

S A8H - 18H - 28H (&R A BE)

4 1 9:00—11:00
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B
{EH : 86-451-82135700

: 86-451-821357175%82135727

The Bank of New York
American Depositary Receipts
22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

P.O. Box 11258
Church Street Station
New York, NY 10286-1258

Hong Kong Registrars Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

Available at Secretary Office of the Board of Directors

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

PRC

On 8th, 18th, and 28th (the following day in case a holiday)
From: 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. and

From: 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Tel: 86-451-82135717 or 82135727

Fax: 86-451-82135700

6002-800¢ Hoday [enuuy psaywi] Auedwo) uswdinb3 1emod uigieH



—
(Sx]
=

(278 5O %) e O ([E 2 S

H3r6002-8002

1.

2.

wBEXHF

Documents Available for Inspection
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1. The original copy of the 2009 Annual Report of the Company.

2. The original copy of the Company's audited financial

statements.
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of
Harbin Power Equipment Company Limited (the “Company”) for the
year of 2009 will be held at 17th Floor Meeting Room, Block B, 39
Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
the People’s Republic of China on Thursday, 3rd June, 2010 at

9:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To consider and approve the Report of the Directors of the

Company for the year ended 31st December, 2009;

2. To consider and approve the Report of the Supervisory
Committee of the Company for the year ended 31st December,
2009;

3. To consider and approve the audited accounts and the auditor’s
report of the Company for the period from 1st January, 2009 to
31st December, 2009;

4. To declare the 2009 dividend of Rmb0.068 per share.

5. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint
any person to fill in a casual vacancy in the Board of Directors
or as an additional director, his term of office shall expire at the

conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company;

6. To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to
determine the appointment of auditors and authorize the Board

of Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board
Ma Sui

Company Secretary

Harbin, China, 9th April, 2010
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Registered Office of the Company:
Block 3, Nangang High Technology Production Base
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Office Address of the Company:
Block B, No 39 Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang District
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Notes:

1. For the purpose of determining the list of shareholders entitled to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and the receive
of the proposed dividend of the year of 2009 to be declared at
that meeting, the Company shall temporarily suspend changes
to the register of shareholders from 3rd May, 2010 to 2nd June,
2010 (both days inclusive). Shareholders whose names appear on
the register at the time of the suspension of registration shall be
entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting and shall
be entitled to receive of the proposed dividend of the year of 2009
(if declared at that General Meeting). Person who purchased shares
of the Company during the period of suspension of registration
shall not be entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting, nor to
the dividend of the year of 2009. In order to qualify for the final
dividend for 2009, all transfers documents, accompanied by the
relevant share certificates, must be lodged with the Company's
Registrar, namely, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Wan
Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m., 30th April 2009.

2. Shareholders intending to attend the Annual General Meeting shall

give written notice of the same to the Company, which shall be
lodged at the office address of the Company before 5:00 p.m. on
2nd May, 2010.

3. A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General

Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more persons (whether or not
a shareholder of the Company) as his proxy to attend and vote on
behalf of him.

4. To be valid, the form of proxy, together with a duly notarized

power of attorney or other document of authority, if any, under
which the form is signed must be deposited at the office address
of the Company not less than 24 hours before the time appointed
for holding the Annual General Meeting.
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